Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council

N
Combhairle Earra-Ghaidheal Agus Bhoid l:$'7113the
Customer Services COUNCIL

Executive Director: Douglas Hendry

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604435
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

8 December 2015

NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of the HELENSBURGH & LOMOND AREA COMMITTEE will be held in the PILLAR
HALL, VICTORIA HALLS, HELENSBURGH on TUESDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2015 at 9:30 AM,
which you are requested to attend.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director of Customer Services

BUSINESS

1. APOLOGIES
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
3. MINUTES

(@) Minutes of previous Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee meeting held on
13 October 2015. (Pages 1 - 4)

(b) Minutes of special Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee meeting held on 23
November 2015. (Pages 5 - 8)

4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

5. ADULT PROTECTION COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 9 - 88)
Report by Bill Brackenridge, Chair of the Adult Protection Committee.

6. HELENSBURGH AND LOMOND AREA SCORECARD FQ2 (Pages 89 - 94)
Report by Executive Director — Customer Services.

7. THIRD SECTOR GRANTS 2015/16 - HIGHLAND GAMES
Reports by Executive Director — Community Services.

(@) Helensburgh Highland Games (Pages 95 - 100)
(b) Rosneath Highland Games (Pages 101 - 108)
8. THIRD SECTOR GRANTS - UPDATE ON FUNDS REMAINING (Pages 109 - 110)



10.

11.

12.

E1 13.

Report by Executive Director — Community Services.

ROADS REVENUE BUDGET - FQ2 (Pages 111 - 118)
Report by Executive Director — Development and Infrastructure Services.

CARE AT HOME - FQ2 (Pages 119 - 126)
Report by Executive Director — Community Services.

HERMITAGE ACADEMY UPDATE
Verbal update by Head of Education.

CHORD PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 127 - 132)
Report by Executive Director — Development and Infrastructure Services.

HELENSBURGH SHOPFRONT ENHANCEMENT INITIATIVE UPDATE (Pages 133
- 140)

Report by Executive Director — Development and Infrastructure Services.

The Committee will be asked to pass a resolution in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the public for items of business with an “E” on the
grounds that it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in the
appropriate paragraph of Part | of Schedule 7a to the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

The appropriate paragraph is:-

E1

Paragraph 8 The amount of any expenditure proposed to be incurred
by the authority under any particular contract for the
acquisition of property or the supply of goods or
services.

Paragraph 9 Any terms proposed or to be proposed by

or to the authority in the course of
negotiations for a contract for the acquisition or disposal
of property or the supply of goods or services.

Helensburgh & Lomond Area Committee

Councillor Maurice Corry Councillor Vivien Dance

Councillor George Freeman (Vice-Chair)

Councillor David Kinniburgh Councillor Robert Graham Maclntyre
Councillor Aileen Morton Councillor Ellen Morton

Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair) Councillor James Robb

Councillor Richard Trail

Shona Barton — Area Committee Manager

Contact: Theresa McLetchie - Tel: 01436 657621



Public Ddcfifeht Pack Agenda Item 3a

MINUTES of MEETING of HELENSBURGH & LOMOND AREA COMMITTEE held in the

Present:

Attending:

PILLAR HALL, VICTORIA HALLS, HELENSBURGH
on TUESDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2015

(Chair)
Councillor George Freeman
Councillor Maurice Corry Councillor Aileen Morton
Councillor Vivien Dance Councillor Ellen Morton
Councillor David Kinniburgh Councillor James Robb
Councillor Robert G Maclintyre Councillor Richard Trail

Shona Barton — Area Committee Manager
Malcolm MacFadyen — Head of Facility Services
Stewart Clark — Roads Performance Manager

APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of the following:-
Councillor Gary Mulvaney.

In the absence of Councillor Gary Mulvaney, Chair, Councillor George Freeman
assumed the Chair for the Area Committee meeting.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest.
MINUTES

(@) Minutes of previous Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee meeting
held on 11 August 2015.

The Minute of the previous meeting held on 11 August 2015 was approved as
a true record.

(b) Minutes of Special Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee held on 8
September 2015

The Minute of the special Area Committee meeting held on 8 September
2015 was approved as a true record.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

The Chair invited questions from the public in attendance at the meeting.

Two members of the public raised their concerns in regards the proposed cuts in the
ASN provision and requested local Members views on this issue.

Members outlined the amount of savings that Argyll and Bute Council would need to
make and highlighted that the forthcoming Public Consultation would provide the



Page 2

local community the ability to feed into this process to help ensure that the right
decisions are made. It was highlighted that an all party group had determined the
proposals and the resulting paper would hopefully enable the public to make an
informed decision.

The issue of the legal duty of Argyll and Bute Council was raised in regards to
Additional Support Needs (ASN) and Members requested that the Area Committee
Manager liaise with the Education Service on this issue and provide this information
accordingly.

EAST CLYDE STREET BUILDING, HELENSBURGH - NAMING PROPOSAL

The Committee considered a report which provided the submission of possible
names for the council’s new offices at East Clyde Street, Helensburgh, from the local
community.

Motion

The Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee notes the contents of the report and
the responses that were received by the Council as a result of the invitation to the
public to propose names for the new Council building on East Clyde Street,
Helensburgh.

The Area Committee notes that 43% of those submitting suggestions proposed that
the building be called The Helensburgh and Lomond Civic Centre with the
maximum support for any of the other 28 proposed names being only 3.9%.

The Area Committee therefore agrees to recommend to the Provost that the new
building be named “The Helensburgh and Lomond Civic Centre”.

Moved by Councillor George Freeman, seconded by Councillor Ellen Morton.
Amendment

That the building be called “The Civic Centre”.

Moved by Councillor Richard Trail, seconded by Councillor James Robb.

On a show of hand Vote, the Motion was carried by 6 Votes to 3 and the Committee
resolved accordingly.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director — Customer Services dated 18
September 2015, submitted).

ROADS ISSUES AND ROADS REVENUE BUDGET FQ1 & FQ4

The Committee considered a report which advised on the roads revenue budget
position at the end of the 15t Quarter of the financial year 2015/16.

Discussion followed and Members enquired if the previous budget overspend on the
Roads Revenue Maintenance Budget 2014-2015 was carried forward. The Roads
Performance Manager advised that the procedure was to review the overall Argyll
and Bute Roads Revenue budget and encompass any shortfalls and overspends
accordingly.



Page 3

Members highlighted that the increase in maintenance of drainage to culverts and
ditches had mitigated the amount of potholes on local roads. The Roads
Performance Manager affirmed that the jet patcher was now being centrally co-
ordinated and it was scheduled for both the Helensburgh and Lomond and Bute and
Cowal areas in the near future.

Members questioned the status of the new street cleaning machine and the Roads
Performance Manager confirmed that he would review this issue and would update
local Members.

Members offered their congratulations to the Roads Performance Manager on his
new appointment as the Marine Operations Manager.

Decision
Members agreed:
1. To note the report and;
2. That the Roads Performance Manager would review the issues raised and

report back to Members.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director — Development and Infrastructure
Services dated 28 August 2015, submitted).

HOLOCAUST MEMORIAL DAY

The Committee considered a report which provided information on Holocaust
Memorial Day which is held on 27 January each year and asked that Members of the
Area Committee provide support to any events which are taking place in the local area

Decision
Members agreed:

(1)  to note that Holocaust Memorial Day will take place on 27 January 2016;
and

(2)  that Members offer their support for events which are taking place in the
local area where appropriate, and promote the opportunity for
communities to participate in the commemoration.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director — Customer Services dated 16
September 2015, submitted)



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Public DdcfifRt Pack Agenda Item 3b

MINUTES of MEETING of HELENSBURGH & LOMOND AREA COMMITTEE held in the

Present:

Attending:

E1 3.

PILLAR HALL, VICTORIA HALLS, HELENSBURGH
on MONDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2015

Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair)

Councillor Maurice Corry Councillor Aileen Morton
Councillor Vivien Dance Councillor Ellen Morton
Councillor George Freeman Councillor James Robb
Councillor David Kinniburgh Councillor Richard Trail

Councillor Robert G Maclntyre

Shona Barton — Area Committee Manager
Malcolm MacFadyen — Head of Facility Services

APOLOGIES

There were no apologies for absence

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Aileen Morton declared a non-financial interest in relation to Item 5 —
Scotcourt House, 45 West Princes Street and 31 James Street, Helensburgh by
reason of her being on the Board of Argyll College.

Councillor Robert Maclintyre declared a non-financial interest in relation to Item 6 -
Unit 2, Ferry Road, Rosneath as he is the owner of an adjoining property.

The Council resolved in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude the press and public for the following items of
business on the grounds that it was likely to involve the disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraphs 8 & 9 respectively of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

MARRIAGE ROOM, 25 WEST KING STREET, HELENSBURGH
Councillor George Freeman entered the room at 4.05p.m.

The Committee considered a report which advised of the offers received in respect
of the Marriage Room, 25 West King Street, Helensburgh.

Decision
The Committee agreed the recommendation at 3.1 of the report.

Councillor Robb, having moved an amendment which failed to find a seconder
requested that his dissent be recorded.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director — Customer Services, dated 10 November
2015, submitted)



E2

E3

E4

Page 6

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 1 EAST PRINCES STREET/ 48 SINCLAIR STREET AND
50 SINCLAIR STREET, HELENSBURGH

The Committee considered a report which advised of the offers received in respect
of the Municipal Building, 1 East Princes Street/ 48 Sinclair Street and 50 Sinclair
Street, Helensburgh.

Decision

The Committee agreed to the recommendations at 3.1 (a) and 3.1 (b) of the report.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director — Customer Services, dated 10 November
2015, submitted)

SCOTCOURT HOUSE, 45 WEST PRINCES STREET & 31 JAMES STREET,
HELENSBURGH

Having previously declared an interest on this Item, Councillor Aileen Morton left the
room and took no part in the discussion of this report.

The Committee considered a report which advised of the offers received in respect
of Scotcourt House, 45 West Princes Street and 31 James Street, Helensburgh.

Motion
Councillor Mulvaney moved a Motion which was seconded by Councillor Corry.
Amendment

Councillor Trail moved an Amendment which was seconded by Councillor Ellen
Morton.

Decision

On a show of hands vote, the Motion was carried by 7 votes to 2 and the Committee
agreed accordingly.

(Reference: Report by Executive Director — Customer Services, dated 10 November
2015, submitted).

Councillor Aileen Morton returned to the meeting.

UNIT 2, FERRY ROAD, ROSNEATH

Having previously declared an interest on this Iltem, Councillor Robert G Maclntyre
left the room and took no part in the discussion of this report.

The Committee considered a report which advised of the offers of purchase received
in respect of Unit 2, Ferry Road, Rosneath.

Decision

The Committee agreed to the recommendations at 3.1 and 3.2 of the report.



Page 7

(Reference: Report by Executive Director — Customer Services, dated 10 November,
2015 submitted).



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Act
against
harm

Argyll and Bute Adult Protection Committee

NHS

b\
Highland

Argyll

$Bute

COUNCIL

W
W
!4 <>» »I
POLICE

SCOTLAND

Keeping people safe

Argyll and Bute Adult Protection Committee - Annual Report April 2014 — March 2015

1

=

Helensburgh & Lomond ﬂ |

6 abed

G Wa)| epusby



CHAIRMAN’S FOREWORD

My last Biennial Report covered the two years to the end of March, 2014. This Annual Report covers the year

. following — to the end of March 2015. In planning the delivery of adult support and protection for the year in
question, we have not been able to take account of the ministerial response to the Biennial Report for there has
been no response!

However, | am delighted at the progress that is being made. The range of sources of referrals continues to widen; the quality of
referrals continues to rise; referrals and subsequent investigations are being undertaken better and more quickly; awareness of
adult support and protection continues to rise. | am grateful to all those who have helped drive these improvements. All these
developments are addressed in detail in the body of this report.

However, there is a great danger that this momentum will not continue. The whole adult support and protection initiative created by
the 2007 Act is lacking national leadership. Undoubtedly the initiative will prosper better with a powerful national dimension. The
National Policy Forum has proved not to be a machine to drive development and there have been too many losses from the Civil
Service team dealing with the issue. Maintaining momentum and driving consistent development are clearly on the agenda; | look
forward to hearing how this important initiative will be supported nationally.

0l ebed

| am particularly pleased that 37% of people in Argyll & Bute now know about adult protection. However, | wonder how much
higher this figure might be if the was a sustained effort at national level to promote awareness of the issue. | do wish the Scottish
Government would run a continuous awareness raising campaign; | believe it would be very effective — and it would be much
cheaper than each APC doing it themselves.

| am also concerned that still there is no national dataset. The trial has elicited some useful and encouraging information — see
Section 2iv of this report — but it would be very useful to be able to make much more detailed comparisons with the national
position.

The number of adults at risk of financial harm is very concerning. To help reduce the risk, the Adult Protection Committee is
holding a conference on the issue in November which will aim to involve banks, solicitors, consumer protection, the Post Office and
others. | urge all those who can defeat this terrible scourge to join together to eradicate it.

2



Once again | urge everyone in Argyll and Bute to look out for their friends, relations and neighbours, indeed for everyone — and if
you suspect an adult is at risk, tell someone. However, do please remember that adults are generally not harmed by strangers or
away from their own home. Sadly most harm to done to people in their own home by someone they already know!

Bill Brackenridge Independent Chair

|| ebed



Contents

CHAIRMAN’S FOREWORD

CONTENTS

1.

2
3.
4

INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT

. NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN

OUTCOMES

. PERFORMANCE

Management Data

Self-Evaluation and Audit

Staffing and Funding

TRAINING AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT

Training

Public Awareness

COMMUNITY SAEFTY, CO-OPERATION, PARTNERSHIP
CONCLUSION, RECOMMENDATION AND FUTURE PLANS

Page

o a1 A~ DN

16
16
37
46
48
48
56
61
64

Z| abed



1. INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT: The Argyll & Bute Adult Protection Committee

‘Each Council must establish a committee’ s42 (1) ASP(S)A 2007

Those who have served as members of the Argyll & Bute Adult Protection Committee during this period are:

Bill Brackenridge
Rebecca Barr
John Dreghorn
Gail McClymont
Anne-Lise Dickie
Jim Robb

Jim Littlejohn
Andrew McLure
Katrina Sayer
Jon Belton
Douglas Whyte
Scott Rorison

Jimmy McGrath

Susan Mair

Independent Chair

Area Manager Adult Protection

Argyll & Bute Council

Project Director (Mental Health Modernisation) NHS Highland

Superintendent

Professional Lead Learning Disability
Head of Adult Care

Service Manager Operations

Group Commander

Project Co-ordinator

Service Manager — Criminal Justice
Service Officer Homelessness
Advocacy Manager

Team Leader

Solicitor

Police Scotland

NHS Highland

Argyll & Bute Council
Argyll & Bute Council
Scottish Fire and Rescue
Argyll Voluntary Action
Argyll and Bute Council
Argyll & Bute Council

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

¢| ebed

Member
Member
Member

In Attendance

Lomond & Argyll Advocacy Service In Attendance

Scottish Ambulance Service

Argyll and Bute Council

Member

member

There is a standing invitation to the Procurator Fiscal Service, The Public Guardian’s Office, the Care Inspectorate and The Mental

Welfare Commission for Scotland to attend meetings of the Argyll & Bute APC.

5



1.1. INTRODUCTION

This report covers the year immediately following the period reported on in the Biennial Report submitted, as required by legislation,
to the Scottish Government by October 2014.

It follows the production of previous annual reports in the years between Biennial Reports produced as a matter of good practice by
the Adult Protection Committee (APC). These have, by design, followed the format agreed nationally for the previous Biennial
report in order to demonstrate progress made in the subsequent period.

Although there is no legal requirement for an annual report, the Terms of Reference for the Chief Officers Group Public Protection
(COGPP), developed in 2014, identified that it has the responsibility for commissioning an Annual Report from each Public
Protection Body which will identify progress against the agreed Annual Plans. There is therefore now a local requirement for an
annual report and an expectation that it will specifically cover the elements of the Improvement Plan.

This report is therefore structured, as previously, to mirror the agreed format for the last Biennial Report, but also covers progress
against the specific elements of the APC improvement plan for 2014-16.

As noted in the Chair's Foreword, comments on the last Biennial Report have not yet been received from the Minister. This means
that it is not possible to draw conclusions as to the performance of the ACP in Argyll and Bute in a national context.

| ebed

1.2. CONTEXT

There have been no major changes to the operation of the APC since the last Biennial Report, although following the establishment
of the COGPP, the APC updated its constitution to reflect the new reporting and governance structure.

As reported in the Biennial Report, the APC continues to meet quarterly, with the independent Chair reporting to the Chief Officers
Group Public Protection.

There continues to be one sub-committee with responsibility for all aspects of multi-agency policy, training and public awareness.
Its members are drawn from the NHS, Police Scotland, social work, Scottish Fire and Rescue and the third sector.

The four Area Forums continue to take forward the adult support and protection agenda within the localities and the last year has
seen changes in the agencies chairing these meetings. Until November 2014 the Area Managers of the social work teams had
taken on this responsibility. However, as agreed in the terms of reference for the Forums, the chair then passed to another of the
6



key agencies with roles in adult protection. In 2 areas the chair is now an NHS manager, and in the other 2 it is an officer from
Police Scotland. The Chair of the APC and the Area Manager Adult Protection met with the new chairs to discuss their roles and
that of the Forum and in 3 of the areas the groups are now up and running under their new chair. Unfortunately in the fourth area
the Police officer due to take on the role of chair was moved and a replacement is expected to be confirmed shortly.

As noted in its updated constitution, the APC will hold an annual self-evaluation session and review its constitution as part of its
ongoing commitment of continuous improvement: this is due to take place in September 2015 when the Minister's comments on the
Biennial Report are likely to have been received, and the feedback from the Joint Inspection of Older peoples Services available to
inform discussion.

The APC agreed an Improvement Plan to cover the 2 years of the next Biennial report (2014-16) and developed a scorecard to
measure performance: see Appendix 1. The baseline score against which progress could be noted was determined from the
previous year’s activity. The scorecard was used to track performance during each quarters of 2014-15. The same measures will
continue to be used in 2015-16 and a new Improvement Plan developed for the next 2 years, following the above noted self-
evaluation activity and the results of case file audit activity.

G| ebed



2. NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN

2.1 NATIONAL PRIORITIES

5 national priorities for adult protection were selected by the Scottish Government in August 2013, and working groups were
established to take forward each of them. Reports on their findings and recommendations were made available during the second
half of 2014. In Argyll and Bute a summary of the work done nationally and local progress against each was taken to the APC in
August 2014, together with recommendations for further work locally. Short presentations covering each of them were also made
at the self-evaluation day held in November 2014 so that staff from all agencies were kept updated on work done, progress made
and ongoing plans for improvement.

2.1.1. Adult Protection in Care Home Settings

As detailed in the Biennial Report, considerable work was done in Argyll and Bute following selection as one of the council areas
funded to take part in this workstream. A multi-agency preventative approach was developed and continued to be the subject of
work during 2014.

9| ebed

e The review process for residents of care homes was implemented across the area and will be reviewed shortly

e The Care Homes QA process was updated and agreed, with reporting to the APC and COGPP taking place on a quarterly
basis

e The first Large Scale Investigation into a care home was started following concerns highlighted through the Care Homes QA
process

e ASP training continues to be provided free to all service providers throughout the area
2.1.2. Accident and Emergency

A method of using the learning from North NHS Highland was agreed and plans to roll out the national training for A&E (and other
ward staff where possible) put in place. This will take place shortly and be reported on in the next Biennial Report.



A further recommendation from the national working group was to extend membership of the APC to the Scottish Ambulance
Service and this has been actioned, as can be seen from the updated list of APC members.

2.1.3. Adults at Risk from Financial Harm

As has been recognised for some time, adult protection referrals for financial harm have continued to rise. Some national
awareness raising was done by the financial harm working group through contact with financial institutions, but it was recognised
that additional work was required locally. During the Scottish Government’s ASP publicity campaign in February/March 2015 the
APC took the opportunity to write to all banks and building societies in the area to draw their attention to this campaign, provide
leaflets and the link to the webpages on adult support and protection, and to offer any further information that they may find useful.
There was little direct response to this contact, but the seriousness and prevalence of this type of harm have led to the APC sub-
committee recommending that the subject of the first adult protection conference in Argyll and Bute should be financial harm. This
is planned for November 2015.

2.1.4. Data Collection

As noted above, it has been impossible to compare any statistics relating to adult support and protection nationally due to the lack
of any central data collection or any agreement as to a national data set. Work done by the national working group led to the trial of
a draft data set during the quarter 1 April — 30 June 2014. Argyll and Bute submitted the required data as requested, but it has
become clear that the data submitted across Scotland was inconsistent and patchy.

Disappointingly, no published national data has been made available from this trial because of the lack of confidence in the figures
received. However, the Scottish Government has provided limited local data to areas who wished to undertake a comparison with
other areas in a small number of categories. Argyll and Bute now has access to a certain amount of data that appears to place it
close to the overall national figures taken from the trial. (The figures are not given here in detail as the Scottish Government has
made clear that they are not for publication.)

The following comparisons have been made available to us by the Scottish Government from the 3 month trial period:

Number of referrals:

L1 ebed



e Argyll and Bute received a very slightly lower number of referrals per 100,000 adults that the national average, but the figure
was in the middle of the range reported

Source of referrals:

Argyll and Bute received
e A slightly lower percentage of referrals from the police than other areas
e A slightly higher percentage of referrals from the NHS than other areas
e A much higher percentage of referral from “other organisations”
e A slightly higher percentage of referrals from individuals

Investigations:

e Argyll and Bute’s ratio of referrals to investigations was slightly higher than the national average

g| ebed

e The ratio of investigations that led to a case conference was very slightly lower than the national average
No other national comparisons were made available by the Scottish Government.

It is clear that few firm conclusions can be drawn from this data, and statistically the limited information available suggests only that
Argyll and Bute can take comfort from the fact that we have no significant areas where we appear to be an outlier in comparison
with national averages.

The draft dataset used for this trial period has been used on a larger scale to collect the data for the full year 1 April 2014-31 March
2015. This was submitted by Argyll and Bute as required and feedback is expected from the Scottish Government later in 2015.

2.1.5. Service User and Carer Engagement

Many of the recommendations for the national working group had already been implemented in Argyll and Bute. Work had been
done to produce user-friendly publicity material, reviewed annually by the sub-group of the APC. The importance of the adult being

10



fully involved in the adult protection process had also been acknowledged and forms Outcome 4 of the APC Improvement plan,
with a number of specific measures collected to determine this.

Outcome 4: Adults at risk receive a person-centred response to concerns about them:
As measured over this year it is clear that:
e 100% of adults (with capacity) were given information about the adult protection process

e Over 80% of adults who were the subject of an investigation had their communication needs considered (target 100%, but it
is clear that 70 adults out of 74 had their communication explicitly considered so that appropriate support was provided
during the investigation process)

e 96% of adults who were the subject of an adult protection investigation were offered advocacy (the target is 100%, but in
comparison with the previous year’s level of 45% offered advocacy, this is a major improvement)

e 100% of adults were invited to attend their case conference and did so or the reason for their non-attendance was recorded,
meeting the target of 100%

61 abed

Although the above figures do not always meet the ambitious targets set, they demonstrate a high level of commitment to ensuring
that the adult is a meaningful participant in the adult protection process involving them.

Further work has continued to take place in relation to this priority. In response to some inconsistency identified through last year’'s
case file audits, council officer and second worker refresher sessions were set up to take place between January and March 2015.
One of the focuses of these sessions was ensuring the adult’s meaningful participation and the Altrum group research packs were
provided to all participants to promote the key messages. In all 85 staff attended the sessions with all except 1 council officer
participating.

In addition, a short-life working group was set up by the APC in order to examine and improve all areas of service user and carer
engagement. This is a multi-agency group with terms of reference that identify the following key objectives:

e To develop leaflets about ASP that are accessible and service user friendly

11



e To provide information and advice for staff from all teams to ensure that all appropriate communication supports are
considered and offered to ensure that a service user participates as fully as possible in an investigation.

e To provide information and advice for staff from all teams to ensure that all appropriate communication support is available
to assist a service user to attend and participate in a case conference

e To develop a procedure and a variety of tools to gather feedback from service users and carers in the most user friendly and
supported way possible

e To agree a process for gathering learning from the feedback provided and disseminate it to staff engaged in adult protection
work

e To consider methods of facilitating service user/carer engagement with the APC

To date the working group has met 3 times and produced a number of tools for staff. The draft questionnaires for gaining feedback
from service users and carers will be trialled as part of this year’s multi-agency case file audit and amendments made as required
prior to rolling them out.

02 ebed

2.2, APC IMPROVEMENT PLAN

The Adult Protection Committee developed its improvement plan for 2014-16 following the work undertaken the previous year to
develop methods of capturing key performance data. The agreed outcomes remain:

Outcome 1 Adults at risk are identified promptly and reported appropriately
Outcome 2 Adults receive an effective integrated response if concerns are expressed that they may be at risk of harm
Outcome 3 Where an adult is found to be at risk of harm, partner agencies work together to investigate the risks and take

action to protect them

Outcome 4 Adults at risk receive a person-centred response to concerns about them

12



These are considered the most important high level outcomes to focus on at this stage in order to ensure that a high quality adult
protection service is delivered by all agencies at all stages of the process.

The scorecard has agreed targets, but also uses the baseline measure developed the previous year to measure progress and
continues to be presented at the APC and then at COGPP meetings.

The Improvement Plan and completed scorecard for 2014-15 is provided in Appendix 1. The different elements of the Improvement
Plan and comments on progress against them are included in the appropriate sections of this report in italics with the specific
Outcome referenced.

1Z ebed

13



3. OUTCOMES

The Guidance provided by the working group of independent chairs on the format for the 2012-14 Biennial Reports suggested that
this section should
e concentrate on “feedback from users and carers on outcomes - how they perceive the adult protection policy and procedures

to be improving their protection from harm; in other words, their response to questions such as 'do you feel safer as a result
of the efforts of the adult protection arrangements?”

e |t should also describe the way in which user and carer interests are represented on or to the Committee activities, with
some explanation of how these arrangements have come about, and an evaluation of their effectiveness.

e It should also provide an evaluation of the users and carers' opportunities to participate in and contribute to the process of
adult protection (for example, invitations, encouragement, communication assistance, and facilitation to take part in case
conferences; local arrangements for advocacy).

To a large extent these elements are described elsewhere in this report. Section 2 provides details on work already done in Argyll
and Bute in relation to the national priority Service User and Carers, and the work currently under development by the short-life
working group.

22 abed

In addition to direct work with service users and carers, consideration has been given to the ways that other APCs engage with
service users in order to ensure that the APC is as responsive as possible. From the outset, the APC agreed that an individual
service user representative on the Committee would be unlikely to provide genuine representation from the range of service users
affected by risk and protection issues. Instead the interests of service users and carers have been represented by the manager of
the advocacy service and the 3™ sector organisation Argyll Voluntary Action.

In examining models of engagement and representation in place elsewhere, it has been agreed that the complex geography of
Argyll and Bute makes many of them extremely difficult to achieve here. Before making a final recommendation to the APC on this
topic, the working group has agreed that it is essential to consider what such engagement is intended to achieve. All are agreed
that tokenistic engagement that produces no results should be avoided. A helpful starting point will therefore be the feedback
gained from adults and carers when it is in place. It is intended that individual feedback about the way that specific cases have
been dealt with will go to the worker and manager involved in them, with any wider themes identified as relating to the strategic

14



implementation of adult support and protection going to the APC for consideration. Information gathered in this way will, it is hoped,
indicate what the main topics of interest or concern are as identified by service users and carers and will assist in considering what
other methods may be used to facilitate their increased engagement with the work of the APC.

15

£z abed



4. PERFORMANCE

4.1. Management Data

4.1.1. Referral numberss

Between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 20015 the social work teams received a total of 501 adult protection referrals.

Data collected since the Adult Support and Protection (Scotland) Act 2007 was implemented has shown that adult protection
referrals have risen considerably over time, but for the first time last year showed a noticeable fall.

Year Number of AP referrals
2008-09 48

2009-10 124

2010-11 274

2011-12 447

2012-13 446

2013-14 556

2014-15 501

16

yZ ebed



Number of AP referrals

20— H—H—H—HB 8B B Number of AP
10—l B B B B referrals

4.1.2. Referrals by area:

As in other years, the adult protection referrals are not received consistently across the areas.

2014-15 referrals by area:

Area Number of AP referrals | % of AP referrals
B&C 166 33.1%

H&L 114 22.7%

MAKI 125 24.9%

oLl 96 19.1%

Total 501

This year has been unusual in seeing MAKI receive more referrals than Helensburgh and Lomond, but as in other years, Bute and
Cowal received the largest number, with OLI receiving the fewest.

17

Gz abed



The chart below shows the differences in referral rates for the areas since July 2010:

60

50

40

30

20

10

/VW\}A/ -

/ ) — AN A/
7

= [ =l | e (¥ B o R T B T |
S99 2883983233333 3 2323
o o o A A A A | o8| SN | S|/ " | ;N | mn | on | s | s | s |
= [ e | e | e | e [ e | e | e e | e | e | e [ e [ e | e | e [ e | e | e
o | o 0o 0o 0|l ool 0o|lo|lo|lo|lo| oo OO
{ome T e T ¥ T o Y o N A ¥ T Y o N Y o O Y I ¥ T N ¥ I Y o O o Y ¥ I o I Y o A Y I Y |
[ae T | [ae T R | [ae T | o | o= | = m | =t
08 309 & 3o 3 3T T3 doc I

AP referrals by area

=—PB&C

=——H&L

= MAKI
(LI

It is clear that all areas except Helensburgh and Lomond saw a fall in referrals in the first 3 quarters of the year and then a rise. The
level of referrals in Helensburgh has remained low, however. There is no obvious explanation for these changes.

18

9z ebed



4.2. Referral sources:

The sources of the adult protection referrals have been collected slightly differently during different years and this makes detailed
comparisons difficult. However, referrals from key sources over the last 6 years are recorded below:

Referral 2009-10 | 2010-11 | 2011-12 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2014-15

source

Police 77 185 309 292 322 284

GP 0 2 2 2 6 7

Hospital 11 6 10 7 23 15

Other health | 0 0 12 14 16 25

Social work | 19 36 24 33 32 16 S
Q

Service 0 24 46 48 60 46 ®

provider E

Friend or 4 7 11 21 28 26

family

Member of 4 4 7 4 2

the public

Self 2 4 7 7 2 5

Overall, the police remain the highest referrer but their referrals have fallen in numerical terms from 332 last year to 284, and as a
percentage of the total, from 62% in 2009-10 to 57% this year.

19



Ensuring that adults at risk of harm are referred to social work is Outcome 1 of the APC Improvement Plan and comments are
provided below on progress against the agreed targets:

Outcome 1: Adults at risk are identified promptly and reported appropriately

As measured this year:

All ASP literature was review in October 2014 and re-distributed to appropriate locations

There was a fall rather than a rise in the referrals from the social work teams

There was a rise in the number of referrals from NHS staff as compared with last year but the overall rise as a
percentage of all referrals was only from 8% to 9%

There was an overall fall in the referrals from care and support providers

There was a small rise in the number of referrals for adults at risk

There was a welcome rise in referrals from relatives, friends or the general public in every quarter this year

During the year it became apparent that reporting on such small numbers by percentage is clumsy. It has therefore been agreed
that the scorecard be amended for next year with reporting on referrals from professional sources and from adults themselves and
the public as the only two measures. Greater detail on the referral sources will continue to be provided in the quarterly statistics
report that goes to the APC.

Of note is the fact that referrals in the last two years have come from a far wider range of sources than previously.

In 2014-15, for the first time referrals have been received from the following staff or organisations:

20

Scottish Ambulance Service
Womens Aid

LD Psychologist

Practice nurse

Pharmacist

OPG

Solicitor/Safeguarder

Bank

gz abed



e Immigration Enforcement Office
e Alocal charity

This widening of the sources of adult protection referrals is encouraging and it is hoped will continue.

4.3. Referral details:

This year has seen no major changes in the details collected in relation to adult protection referrals.

4.3.1. Ethnicity

The adults referred are overwhelmingly of a white ethnic origin, as would be expected from the population of Argyll and Bute.
4.3.2. Gender

Overall more women than men are referred, which appears to be the case in other areas, according to anecdotal information.

62 abed

4.3.3. Age group

As may be expected, the largest number of referrals are for those in the 40-64 age group, which is the largest group below. Of
concern, however is the continued rise in the number of those referred who are 65 and older. In the Biennial Report it was noted
that the percentage of the over 65s who are referred are higher than their numbers in the population would predict, particularly in
the over 85 bracket. In year 2013-14 there were 221 referrals for over 65s, 39.7% of all referrals. In 2014-15 this has risen to 235
referrals, making up 47% of the total.

21



Age group Number referred Percentage of those referred
16-24 51 10.2%
25-39 57 11.4%
40-64 157 31.3%
65-69 24 4.8%
70-74 20 4%
75-79 57 11.4%
80-85 64 12.8%
85+ 70 14%
Age not 1 0.2%
recorded

Total 501 100%

4.3.4. Type of harm referred:

Over time the highest number of referrals has been for adults who have self-harmed. The biggest fall noted this year has been in
these referrals. As these referrals tend to come from the police, this drop is likely to correspond to the reduction in referrals from
that source.

22

o€ ebed



Type of harm | 2009-10 2010-11 201112 201213 2013-14 2014-15
Self-harm 53 98 163 88 151 92
Physical 27 49 56 45 87 79
Psychological | 2 58 109 48 60 46
Financial 13 19 22 27 51 49
Neglect 3 30 46 19 31 27
Self-neglect Not Not Not 19 32 27
collected collected collected
Sexual 11 17 25 19 14 22

The only rise in harm reported relates to sexual harm. Because of the potential seriousness of a rise in such referrals they have
been checked individually to ensure that all cases where any sexual harm may have occurred have been reported to the police. In
19 out of the 22 cases, the police were either already involved, or social work reported the allegation to them. In 2 cases the
information reported to social work was either extremely vague or related to a misunderstanding and it was almost immediately
clear that the original allegation was untrue. In the third case the allegation related to an incident in a care home and was dealt with
by the manager in conjunction with the GP, and the relatives and Care Inspectorate were informed. The range of referrals relating
to sexual harm was wide, with a number being followed up by the police, others relating to historic allegations and others to
inappropriate internet contact.

Other types of harm have remained approximately consistent with the overall drop in referrals as there has been a small decrease
in the other categories compared with last year.

23

L€ ebed



4.3.5 Client group of those referred

The way that adults have been categoried by their diagnoses or client groups have changed over time and are now based on the
client group as recorded in Carefirst. A wide variety of categorisations are used, some that appear to duplicate others, so that they
cannot be taken to be definitive. However, the highest number of referrals have been received for the following adults in the last 2
years:

Client group Number Percentage Number Percentage
2013-14 2014-15
2013-14 2014-15

Dementia 48 8.6% 54 10.7%

Frail/temp. illness 59 10.6% 79 15.7%

Learning disability 54 9.7% 55 10.9% T

Mental health - other 166 29.8% 105 20.9% 8
D

Physical disability 62 11.1% 80 15.9% %

As has been noted in other reports, the category “mental health — other” has sometimes been used poorly by staff recording
referrals and generally refers to someone behaving oddly rather than someone with a mental health diagnosis. It is encouraging
that there has been a fall in the number of referrals noted in this category.

The biggest rises have been in adults categorised as having dementia, a frail or temporary illness or a physical disability or illness,
all of which can be used for older people. Additional work is being done going forward to cross-check referrals by age group, client
group and type of harm, to provide more details as to these issues. However, in the short-term, work done for the Dementia
Programme Board on the prevalence of harm for those with dementia has highlighted a the vulnerability of people with this
condition:

24



e In 2013-14 there were 48 referrals for those with the client group dementia: 8.6% of the total
e In 2014-15 there were 54 referrals for those with the client group dementia: 10.8% of the total

Not all of these referrals led to the adult being considered to meet the criteria for being considered an adult at risk under the Act, a
high number related instead to welfare concerns. However, those referrals where it appears that the adult is being harmed led to an

adult protection investigation

In 2014-15 there were 17 adult protection investigations for adults with dementia. This comprised 27.7% of all adult protection

investigations: a higher percentage than for any other client group.

Not all adult protection investigations conclude that the adult is at risk of harm, but it is clear from the 2014-15 figures that there is a
high likelihood of investigations for adults with dementia determining that they are at risk.

82.3% of adult protection investigations for adult with dementia concluded that they were at risk of harm.

In B&C 3 investigations concluded that 2 adults with dementia were at risk
In Helensburgh and Lomond 4 investigations concluded that 4 adults were at risk
In MAKI 4 investigations concluded that 3 adults were at risk
In OLI 6 investigations concluded that 5 adults were at risk

This compares to
e 75% for adults who are frail elderly
e 50% for adults with a learning disability
e 45% for adults with mental health issues

Those at risk were:

25

5 adults at risk of physical harm from a relative

4 adults at risk of financial harm from a relative

2 adults at risk of self-neglect

1 adult at risk of physical harm from a paid carer

1 adult at risk of psychological harm from a friend/carer

1 adult at risk of physical harm from another resident in a care home

¢¢ abed



These were equally spread across the 4 areas.

New cross-check information now being put in place means that in the future we will be able to provide more such analysis, but for
now the conclusions that we can draw in relation to this specific group are limited to:

e The number of referrals for over 65s are rising and forming a rising percentage of all adult protection referrals

e The number of referrals for those diagnosed with dementia are rising and forming a rising percentage of all adult protection
referrals

e More adult protections investigations are done for adults with dementia than for any other client group
e More adults protection investigations for adults with dementia conclude that the adult is at risk than for any other client group

e Adults with dementia are more likely to be at risk of harm from family members than others

4.4. Completing inquiries following adult protection referrals:

¢ abed

In line with the West of Scotland Practice Guidance, which Argyll and Bute has signed up to since it was first developed, all
inquiries made as a result of an adult protection referrals should be completed within 5 working days. It is not always possible to
conclude this piece of work within such a timescale for various reasons, such as key professionals being away, so the agreed
target is for 80% of all referrals to be finished within this period.

Performance against this measure is reported as part of Outcome 2 of the APC Improvement Plan: Adults receive an effective
integrated response if concerns are expressed that they may be at risk of harm

The performance indicator is: 80% of adult protection referrals received by social work will have the initial inquiries completed within
5 working days.

e In 2014-15 75% of referrals were completed within this timescale.

26



It was recognised that some areas achieved far better results than others in completing these pieces of work, and the methods
used in MAKI, whose performance tended to be far closer to the target than the other areas, has been shared with all Area
Managers. There have been some initial difficulties in ensuring that all the relevant data is captured, but it is hoped that from July
2015 there will be accurate data as to why delays occur in completing particular referrals.

4.5. Repeat Referrals

As reported in the last Biennial Report, a small working group was set up last year to look at those adults who were generally not
considered adults at risk of harm, but who were the subject of repeat referrals because of self-harm incidents. It had been
recognised that further information about the response of the various agencies to these individuals was essential in order to
develop a consistent and supportive approach.

The final report of the working group was presented to the APC in August 2014 with a number of pieces of work completed. These
included:

e The pathways for individuals who self-harm were mapped

e |t was recognised that the role of the GP is crucial in the process and a brief survey of GPs was undertaken, although the
response rate was low.

Ge abed

e Work was done to clarify and standardise the response from social work when an adult support and protection referral is
made

e Guidance for A&E staff dealing with frequent attenders at A&E was updated

e A flowchart was produced to clarify the agreed pathways and the responsibility to provide appropriate information to those
who self-harm

e It was agreed that self-harm training provided by Choose Life staff would be re-introduced

These pieces of work should now mean that when an adult self-harms, whether they are referred as an adult at risk or not, they
should receive similar information and advice, and when referred as an adult at risk the response from social work will be the same
wherever the adult lives.

27



It was also recognised, however, that the issue of people in distress is a far wider one than could be addressed by the short-life
working group and it is expected that further work on this topic will be progressed shortly on a national basis.

Locally, a change was made to the adult protection procedures for social work staff to clarify the need to hold a multi-agency case
discussion after a certain number of referrals, again to ensure consistency across the areas. An additional level of scrutiny was also
built into the process in response to concerns from staff who work with adults where the risks that they will continue to self-harm are
high. In any case where 8 or more adult protection referrals have been received at any point, the adult’s case and the work of social
work staff will be examined by either the Service Manager Operations or the Lead Officer Adult Protection and feedback given to
staff. This ensures that the work of the staff is either validated or challenged by an external manager so that staff can feel
confidence that in situations that are likely to be both complex and challenging, their actions and interventions are supported.

4.6. The Outcomes of Adult Protection Referrals

As noted in the Biennial Report, Argyll and Bute Council made a number of changes to the way that data was recorded from 1 April
2013. From this time additional information was recorded as to the outcome of all adult protection referrals, enabling the information
from 2014-15 to be compared with the previous year, but no further back.

The outcomes of the 501 referrals made in 2014-15 were as follows, and are recorded alongside those made in 2013-14 for
comparison:

Outcome Number Percentage Number Percentage
2013-14 2014-15

2013-14 2014-15

Adult meets 3 point test and AP 74 13% 56 11%

investigation required

Adult meets 3 point test but concerns 112 20% 122 24%

known and managed though care plan

Adult does not meet 3 point test: SW 58 10% 64 8%

assessment to be done

Adult does not meet 3 point test: repeat | 18 3% 25 5%

28

9¢ ebed



referrals mean case discussion

Adult does not meet 3 point test: 56 10% 46 9%
referred to other agency

Adult does not meet 3 point test: known | 155 28% 148 29%
to and supported by services

Adult does not meet 3 point test: NFA 63 11% 29 6%
Not recorded 18 3% 9 2%
Open (e. not completed) 2 0.03% 2 0.04%

Again as last year, high numbers of those referred as adults at risk were already known to services:

e There was a rise from 20% to 24% of referrals where the adult was considered at risk but the concerns were already known
and being managed through a care plan and existing risk assessment

L€ abed

e There was a small rise from 28% to 29% in the percentage of referrals where the adult was not considered to be at risk and
they were already known to and supported by existing services.

In line with the updated procedures there was an increase in the numbers and percentage of cases where repeat referrals for
someone not considered at risk led to a case discussion: 18 cases (3%) up to 25 cases (5%).

As last year, a relatively low proportion of referrals led to an adult protection investigation. The 55 investigations that took place this
year were approx. 11% of all adult protection referrals, reasonably close to last year’s figure of 13%.

29



The referrals for that led to an adult protection investigation for an adult were made by:

Referral source

Number of referrals made

Referral source

Number of referrals made

Care and support provider 11 Housing Assoc./Homeless 4
Social work team 5 LD psychologist 2
Police 9 Womens Aid 1
Hospital 1 Friend 2
Relative 6 Bank 1
GP 4 OPG 2
Care Home 3 SALT 1
SWES 1 Advocate 1
NHS 24 1

It continues to be the case that the quality and relevance of adult protection referrals vary, with some agencies making a far higher

proportion of referrals that lead to an adult protection investigation than others:

Referral source % of referrals from source that led to
an investigation

GP 57%

Care/support providers 24%

Social work teams 31%

Relative/Friend 31%

Other health sources 16%

Police 3%

30

g¢ abed



4.7. Details of the adult for whom an adult protection investigation took place:

4.7.1 Age group:

Age group Male Female All adults

16-24 2 1 3

25-39 0 4 4

40-64 7 7 14

65-69 3 2 5

70-74 3 2 5

75-79 4 1 5
A

80-84 5 7 12 Q
()]
w

85+ 0 7 7 o

Total 24 31 55

It is clear from the figures below that the ages of those referred and those who are considered at risk and so are the subject of an
adult protection investigation, are very different. As noted above in section 4.3.3 they are also clearly not represented equally in all
sections of the population of Argyll and Bute.

31



Age Band Number of % Population  |% of Argyll Number of AP (% of
AP Referrals (2012 and Bute investigations |investigations as
SAPES) population proportion of

aged 16 and referrals
over

16-24 51 10% 8260 11.3% 3 5.5%

25-39 57 1% 12101 16.6% 4 7.2%

40-64 157 31% 32315 44 .4% 14 25.5%

65-69 24 5% 6422 8.8% 5 9%

70-74 20 4% 4906 6.7% 5 9%

75-79 57 11% 3786 5.2% 5 9%

80-84 64 13% 2685 3.7% 12 21.8%

85+ 70 14% 2356 3.2% 7 12.7%

Age not 1 0.02%

recorded

501 100.00% 72831 100.0% 55 10.9%

It is obvious, for example that referrals for adults between 16 and 65 make up 52% of all referrals but lead on to only ¢.38% of the
investigations. And while almost 27% of the adult population of Argyll and Bute is over 65, it is over 65s who were the subject of
61.5% of the adult protection investigations. Interestingly, up to the age of 65, adult protection referrals are received at a rate that is
slightly lower than that of the population for that age group. Over 75, that changes, and a higher proportion of referrals are received.

As noted in the last Biennial Report it is clear that there will be challenges for services as the population in Argyll and Bute ages in

the way that is predicted.

32

of ebed



4.7.2. Client group:

Client group Number of investigations
Dementia 13

Mental health 13

problems

Learning disability 12

Physical disability 5

Infirmity due to age 10

Substance misuse 1
T
Other 1 o
Q
Total 55 (0]
N
—

Many of these figures are close to those recorded for 2013-14. However, there has been a rise in the number of investigations for
people with a mental health diagnosis, from 8 last year to 13 this year. There has also been a fall in investigations for people with
physical disability from 12 last year to 5 this year. The client groups used are not necessarily mutually exclusive and it is not
possible to draw firm conclusions from these figures.

33



4.7.3. Types of principal harm:

Type of harm

Number of investigations

Financial 18
Psychological 10
Physical 16
Sexual 4
Neglect 3
Self-harm 1
Self-neglect 3
Total 55

The biggest rise from last year’s types of harm is the incidence of financial harm investigated. Last year 13 adult protection
investigations related to this (22.8%), this year it was 18 investigations (32.7%). A number of referrals were received from banks
and others from friends and relatives who believed that an adult was being financially harmed. It appears that there is a greater
awareness of this type of harm, which is to be welcomed. But as noted in the Chair’s introduction, financial harm is a priority for the

APC in the coming months.

Disturbingly, there has also been a rise in the number of incidents of physical harm investigated, from 11 last year (19.2%) to 16
this year (29%).

The only fall of note is that the number of cases of psychological harm investigated went from 20 last year to 10 this year.

34

Zi ebed



4.7.4. The alleged harm took place in the following locations:

Location of harm Number of investigations
Own home 45

Care home 7

Sheltered housing 1

Public place 2

Total 55

This data has been captured only for the last 3 years, and it is clear that 2014-15 reflects the previous 2 years in that the vast
majority of the investigation into harm to adults examines allegations that they were harmed in their own home.

4.8. Outcomes of the Adult Protection Investigations

¢t abed

Of the 55 investigations undertaken, 32 concluded that the adult was at risk of harm and a case conference was held. In 3 other
cases it was decided that Adults with Incapacity legislation was a more appropriate legal route to providing long-term protection for
the adult.

4.8.1. Case conferences:

In 2014-15 32 initial case conferences were held. Of these, 17 concluded that the adult was at risk of harm and protection plans
were put in place, other adults were not considered at risk — often because of action already taken to protect them — and in one
case it was agreed that the risks to the adult were most appropriately managed through the ongoing CPA process

In addition, 19 adult protection review case conferences were held to consider the ongoing risks to the adult and monitor the
protection plan.

35



In addition to this quantitative data on adult protection work that is collected, there is a performance measures that relate to the
timescale in which adult protection work is completed.

The West of Scotland Practice Guidance originally suggested that all adult protection case conferences should be held within 10
working days of the referral of the concern. This proved almost impossible to meet for most Councils, and when the Guidance was
updated in 2012 this timescale was extended to 28 working days. Following discussion at the APC it was agreed that to sanction
the delay such a crucial meeting for such a long period of time was unhelpful, and a 15 working day timescale was agreed in Argyll
and Bute.

Performance against this measure is reported as part of Outcome 3 of the APC Improvement Plan: Where an adult is found to be
at risk of harm, partner agencies work together to investigate the risks and take action to protect them

The performance indicator is: 95% of case conferences take place within 15 working days of the referral

e [n 2014-15 only 57.9% of case conferences were held within this timescale, out of those that were delayed, 75% had a good
reason for holding the meeting at a later date, these include the cancellation of ferries because of bad weather, the need to
wait for a key staff member to return from leave efc.

4.9. Protection Orders

During the course of 2014-15 a Banning Order with power of arrest was successfully applied for and followed a Temporary Banning
Order for the same individual.

4.10. Large Scale Investigations

One Large Scale Investigation was started during this year following a number of serious concerns in a residential home. This was
the first of these to be done in Argyll and Bute following adoption of this procedure in April 2014.

36

p¥ ebed



4.11. Management Data Conclusions

The management data presented above, together with additional information about referral types, goes to the APC each quarter for
scrutiny and discussion. Ongoing areas for examination have included such issues as

e The high level of referrals from the police
e The unexplained difference in referral levels across the areas of Argyll and Bute

e The need to ensure a rise in public awareness so that referral numbers from service users, family members and the public
rise

e The need to ensuring ongoing training for staff from all agencies so that referral numbers for social work, the NHS and
provider organisations continue to rise

e The need to maintain a scrutiny of work being done where adults are referred repeatedly following incidents of self-harm

e Other issues identified by APC members as they arise

Gi ebed

4.12 SELF EVALUATION AND AUDIT

The Adult Protection Committee has continued to use a number of methods to examine its own performance and the way that its
member agencies work together to support and protect adults at risk of harm.

4.12.1. Self-Evaluation Days

As in previous years, the APC held a self-evaluation day in November 2014. This was a particularly well-attended event with
representatives of a wide range of partner agencies present.

The theme of the self-evaluation day in 2014 was “Working Together”. The presentations included
e Information from the key agencies on the local and national progress on the 5 National Priorities for ASP

37



e An update on Integration from the newly appointed Chief Officer for the Health and Social Care Partnership

e Updates from the 4 chairs of the Area Forums on work done in their area over the year as they passed the responsibility for
this meeting over to the new chairs

e Details of the audit activity and findings from 2013-14 covering all types of adult protection cases
Discussions then took place in area groups on the following topics:
o What works well in Argyll and Bute? What works well in our area? How could we make it even better?
o What do we need to improve in our area? What should be our local priorities?
o What do we need to improve centrally?

Much of the feedback from the areas was positive, and a number of areas for future work locally were identified and will be taken
forward by the Area Forums. Areas requiring work from the APC or Lead Officer Adult Protection included:

of ebed

o Improving awareness of adult support and protection

o Continuation of the training programme in 2015

o Local publicity campaign agreed to support the SG campaign

o Contact with financial institutions planned at same time to draw attention to financial arm
o A&E staff training to be rolled out

o The need to improve the consistency of adult protection investigations

o Council officer refresher training to take place in the new year

o Council officer forum to be established to discuss cases and good practice

All of these activities are now underway or have been completed.

38



In response to the participants’ enthusiasm for an adult protection conference instead of another self-evaluation day in 2015, plans
are underway for such an event to take place in November.

4.12.2. Case File Audits

Following the model used to audit adult protection work in 2013, two separate types of case file readings took place in 2014: a
multi-agency audit of a small number of cases where an adult protection investigation was done and a case conference took place,
and a large scale audit of cases from across all areas where the decision had been taken (following inquiries) that the adult was not
at risk and adult protection procedures would not be used. Details of both are below.

4.12.2.1. Multi-Agency Case File Audit 2014

In previous years the multi-agency case file audit had been confined to case file readings. In 2014, a more ambitious model was
adopted from another local authority and the examination of records was supplemented — where possible — with interviews with the
adult who had been the subject of the investigation and with the lead council officer. The findings from the file readings and
interviews were then considered by a small group of professionals from each of the key agencies and an overall report produced
with recommendations for each partner. The report was presented at the APC meeting in October 2014.

8 cases were randomly selected from across the four areas and represented all client groups. As in the previous year, difficulties in
gaining consent from all the adults approached and the limitations of requiring the adult to either have capacity or to have a legal
representative to give consent, made this is a long and difficult process. Again it mean that the cases finally selected for audit were
not particularly representative of those adults who were the subject of an investigation, as many of the cases related to an adult
with dementia and who could not consent to their case being examined, and so were ruled out of this process. There were also
considerable difficulties in obtaining consent from adults to be interviewed as many were content to allow an examination of the
files but not to discuss what was a painful and difficult subject for them. A number of staff were also unavailable for interview
through having left the department of through sickness.

In all the work done included:
8 multi-agency records examined

3 adults (or their representative) interviewed

39

L ebed



6 workers were interviewed

4.12.2.2. Interviews with the adult or their representative:

It was agreed by the team examining the surveys that the three interviews undertaken with the adults provided feedback so specific
to those particular individuals that the information gathered was statistically insignificant and provided no general information of
value.

However, it was also agreed that gaining the feedback of adults who have been the subject of an adult protection investigation is
absolutely vital. The short-life Service User and Carer Engagement Group has now been set up to develop better tools and
processes to use to improve this, and these will be trialled as part of the 2015 case file audit..

4.12.2.3 Interviews with the workers:

Overall the interviews with the lead council officers for the adult protection investigations provided very positive feedback. In all six
workers were interviewed. All felt confident that they understood their roles and responsibilities, all felt that the adult protection
process had been multi-agency, all felt that the adult was safer at the end of the process and all felt that they had been supported
throughout by their managers.

gy ebed

The only negative comments made related to the time that adult protection work takes and the impact this can have on existing
workloads.

In additional comments made during the interviews, many staff showed an appetite for developing their skill and knowledge in adult
protection through case discussions and refresher training based on actual cases. The first Council Officer Forum to enable this
type of learning to take place has now been held and was well attended.

4.12.2.4. Case file readings:

A number of aspects of the ASP work by the different agencies were examined by pairs of staff with a number of areas of work
examined for quality of action and recording.

In every category examined, the evaluation given to the files from different agencies ranged from weak to excellent, with no
particular patterns apparent.

40



4.12.2.5. Overall quality of the work by each agency:

Not all agencies were involved in all cases, and one audit pair failed to provide an overall score.

Police NHS Social Work | Multi-agency
Weak 0 1 0 1
Adequate 1 2 2 3
Good 2 2 3 0
Very good 0 2 1 3
Excellent 0 0 0 0

The final questions asked of the staff who examined the files were:

61 abed

Was the process multi-agency throughout? 6 out of 9 (66%) felt that it was
Was the adult at the heart of the process? 6 out of 9 (66%) felt that they were
Was there evidence of positive (or negative) outcomes for the adult? 5 out of 9 (55%) could see clear positives for the adult

The completed file reading templates and questionnaires from staff and adults were then examined by the multi-agency group , and
the following areas for improvement identified.

4.12.2.6. Areas for improvement:

Areas for improvement were noted for all the key agencies to be taken back to individual organisations by those involved in the
group who considered the audit findings. These include:

41



42

For social work:

(@)
(@)

The quality of adult protection investigations was inconsistent

The views of the adult and their family members/carers were not always clarified and considered essential to the
protection process: there was a sense in some pieces of work that adult protection was done to people and not with
them

For Police Scotland:

(@)

For NHS staff

O

It was recognised that although social work staff reported potential crimes to the Police, feedback from the Police as
to their actions tended to be extremely slow, which made it difficult for social work to develop the fullest possible
protection plans

There were a number of times when it was clear that concerns about an adult had not been shared with social work at
the earliest possible stage.

0G abed

It was recognised that sometimes only limited information was shared with social work when an adult protection
investigation was being undertaken.

Where health staff had been contacted for information as part of the investigation they did not always record in their
own systems that this had taken place. This meant that in some health records there was no immediate way of
identifying that adult protection concerns had been noted. One GP invited an auditor to examine the computed system
in the practice as well as examine their notes. A visit to the health centre took place and it was immediately clear that
although some information about adult protection concerns were available in the patient notes, they were stored
alongside other information and not highlighted in any way. This means that should a locum GP see the patient they
would not be made aware of the concerns that were current.

In 2 out of the 7 case conferences GPs were invited but did not attend, send apologies or provide a report, meaning
that their vital contribution was missing.



4.12.2.7. Actions:
The following actions were agreed by the APC as a result of the audit:
e That the audit method be adopted for a second year, with minor modifications.

This has been agreed, but with additional internal social work evaluation of cases where an adult protection investigation
took place and where consent cannot be obtained because the adult lacks capacity and has no representative, in order to
ensure that a more representative spread of cases are examined

e That the inconsistency and — in some cases lack of knowledge and skill — in undertaking adult protection investigations be
addressed through the provision of refresher sessions for council officers and those who may be used as second workers in
the period January-March 2015.

As detailed in Section 2, all except one Council Officer attended the refresher sessions held during this period

e That a Council Officer Forum be set up in order to maintain the knowledge base of those who act as council officers and
develop a culture of learning through sharing practice.

LG ebed

The first Council Officer Forum was held in May, with a second scheduled for September.

e Specific work with GPs was recommended so that they had access to adult support and protection training appropriate to
them and to encourage them to attend case conferences.

One PLT event for GPs has now been held, with others being planned for the future. There is also a degree of
progress with facilitating a GP to attend the APC so that they can cascade information as appropriate to colleagues,
although no G.P. has yet attended an APC meeting.

43



4.12.3. Internal Social Work Audit 2014

Those social work team leaders not engaged in the multi-agency case file audit examined 46 AP referrals and the work undertaken
following their receipt. This was approximately 10% of all those cases where the decision had been taken that the adult was not at
risk of harm and that AP procedures would not be used. The work examined was from every area and covered every client group.

4.12.3.1. Audit tool:

The audit tool used was that developed for the previous year’s case file audit. However, during its use the team leaders fed back
that they considered its marking scheme too generous and it was further adapted to reflect their comments. The scores given to
each piece of work were then adjusted according to the new marking scheme but based on the work done by the team leaders. The
result of this is that they appear to demonstrate a high degree of poor quality work.

4.12.3.2. Scoring:

o
Overall scores demonstrated a wide range in the quality of work done with all areas being responsible for both poor and excellent 8
work. ®
(9]
Poor Adequate Good Excellent N

Totals 20 7 9 10

These results were so concerning that the 20 forms considered “poor” were re-checked by the Lead Officer Adult Protection. This
cross check showed that in general the weaknesses were in the recording rather than the action taken, and also in providing a
critical analysis of the information gathered. Overall 78% demonstrated that the inquiries undertaken were appropriately multi-
agency.

Forms that demonstrated less that excellent recording, practice and decision-making showed similar patterns across all areas:

37% of forms did not have all the information fields completed. This is poor and has been reflected over the year in the
statistics that have been collected for the APC. Team leaders have been requested to be more scrupulous in checking forms for
completeness of recording before they authorise them.

44



22% of forms did not demonstrate that the worker had made multi-agency inquiries. This means that in 78% the inquiries
were appropriately multi-agency, which is extremely positive. A check of those forms where multi-agency inquiries were not made
suggests that some of those were cases well known to the worker, so that further information gathering about their background was
unnecessary. It would have been more helpful had this been recorded more clearly, and again team leaders have been reminded
that where the adult and their needs are known to the department, this needs to be explicitly recorded.

72% of forms did not gather sufficient evidence to demonstrate whether or not the adult met the 3 criteria to be
considered an adult at risk of harm and how this decision was made. The role of social work as defined by the ASPA is to
receive adult protection referrals, make inquiries and then determine whether or not the adult is at risk of harm and whether action
needs to be taken to protect them. This audit clearly demonstrates that social work staff make inquiries, but it also shows that staff
then fail to show any critical analysis of the information gained and so demonstrate how the decision about whether or not the adult
is at risk is reached.

39% of forms did not demonstrate that appropriate follow up was provided. At first glance this appears a disappointing result,
but a check of those forms where this conclusion was reached suggests that the issue highlighted by the audit team was one of
poor recording rather than poor decision-making. In many cases the adult was already known to staff and already receiving support
but the form completed did not make clear why the decision was reached that this was appropriate and no other follow up needed.
However, in some forms the decision was clearly a poor one.

4.12.3.3. General points

Although the results of this audit are disappointing, the consensus of opinion amongst the team leaders who took part was that it
was an invaluable exercise for their own learning. Specific actions to improve performance were agreed with them on the day of the
exercise, with others following:

¢ A change was made to the AP referral form to highlight that an analysis of the information gathered is required and provide a
space for this. This is now being used extremely effectively by staff.

e The team leaders were sent the marking scheme used in the audit as a template against which to consider work that they
authorise.

45

£G abed



e The team leaders were sent the forms completed by their peers so that they could examine those considered to demonstrate
good recording and practice and those that were judged to be less good to use them as training exercises with their staff

e At the request of team leaders anonymised template forms were created to demonstrate good recording and poor recording
again to be used within teams to show staff what is expected of them.

e An external trainer was commissioned to provide a session for team leaders (and a small number of council officers) on
“Recording and Defensible Decision Making”. This took place in November 2014, and at the suggestion of those who
attended will be repeated in 2015 for those unable to attend the first session.

4.12.3.4. Overall findings from the 2014 case file audit:

As last year, the audits undertaken provided useful information for those involved in supporting and protecting adults in Argyll and
Bute. It is clear that although considerable amounts of good work is taking place, this is too often inconsistent. The findings have
been used to develop actions to make improvements in many areas and it is hoped that the audits in 2105 will demonstrate that
improvements have been made.

G abed

4.13. STAFFING AND FUNDING
4.13.1. Staffing

The Lead Officer Adult Protection works to the APC and has been, to date, line managed by the Head of Service Adult Care. With
the changes brought about by Integration, this will change and is currently awaiting agreement.

The Lead Officer Adult Protection and the APC were supported by the work of a half time admin officer in 2014-15. Following the
admin review that took place within social work in 2014, this position is currently unfilled, but ongoing support is being provided
through the strategic admin team until the situation is resolved.

4.3.2. Funding

Argyll and Bute Council continues to recognise the importance of adult support and protection and has, to date, maintained the

previously agreed level of funding to support all aspects of this work. The funding for four social work staff was passed to the area
46



teams in 2012 to support their adult protection work, but all other elements of funding remain available to support other aspects of
adult protection work.

47

GG ebed



5. TRAINING AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT

5.1. TRAINING

‘... making arrangements for improving the skills and knowledge of officers .. of public bodies’ s42(1)(c) ASP(S)A 2007

The multi-agency training plan developed by the Policy and Training sub-committee of the APC continues to focus on all aspects of
adult support training. A full training programme for 2014-15 was published on the Argyll and Bute Council website at the start of
the calendar year, with online bookings available to all agencies making it easily accessible.

A revised, simplified training framework was agreed in 2014, see below, with an associated Training Plan.

9G abed

48



Training Plan

LEVEL DESCRIPTION OUTCOME SOUGHT TARGET GROUP MANDATORY NOTES




5.1.1. Training provided 2014-15:
Level 1 Training:
Introduction to Adult Support and Protection

Most of this training was commissioned from an external provider, with the Lead Officer Adult Protection undertaking a small
number of sessions in the more remote locations. It was open to all agencies groups across each area.

Overall 23 sessions took place with 344 staff trained across locations in Helensburgh, Dunoon, Bute, Lochgilphead, Campbeltown,
Oban, Mull, Islay and Tiree.

The attendees were as follows:

The attendees were as follows:

Agency Number attended ;)U
(@]

Local Authority 141 )
N

NHS Highland 109 oo

3rd Sector/Other 94

Total 344

Below is a breakdown of the 3 Sector/Other agencies that attend:

Agency Number attended
Abbeyfield House 18

ALlenergy 3

Argyll Voluntary Action 6

50



Bield Housing 4
Carers Direct 9
Carr Gomm 26
HART 3
Encompass Counselling 1
Lochside Care Home 6
Lynne of Lorne Care Home 8
Marines Support Agency 3
Northwood House 1
Premier Health Care 5
RAMH/ACUMEN 1
Total 94

The evaluations were consistently good, with average scores between 4 (very good) and 5 (excellent ) in all categories.
Adult Protection Case Conference Minute Taking Training

This half day course for admin staff who take the minutes of adult protection case conferences was run in October 2014, and

attended by 13 staff.

The changes in the admin teams across the areas as a result of the admin review within social work, means that there are plans to
run this training again shortly for the staff in both adult care and children and families who may be required to minute adult
protection case conferences as part of their new roles.

51

65 abed



The evaluations were consistently good, with average scores between 4 (very good) and 5 (excellent ) in all categories.
Level 2 Training:
The Adult Support and Protection Act in Practice

This one day course was run for a second year in 2014-15 and aims to ensure that staff from the key agencies who work with
adults who may be vulnerable to harm have a basic understanding of adult support and protection and their responsibilities. The
day long sessions reminds staff of the essential elements of the Act, provides an update on local social work and multi-agency
procedures for dealing with adult protection referrals through to case conference and protection planning and provides a refresher
of good practice in adult support and protection.

It is run by the Lead Officer Adult Protection and is open to any staff who hold cases or manage provider services from any of the
key agencies. Overall 8 sessions were held between 15t April 2014 and 31t March 2015, with 78 staff trained across locations in
Helensburgh, Dunoon, Bute, Lochgilphead, Campbeltown and Oban.

The attendees were as follows:

Agency Number attended
Local Authority 42
NHS Highland 11
31 Sector/Other 25
Total 78

52

09 abed



Below is a breakdown of the 3 Sector/Other agencies that attend:

Agency Number attended

Alzheimer’s Scotland 3

Bield Housing 3

Carr Gomm 2

Crossreach 2

Enable Scotland 3

HART 2

H&L Carers 5

Lynne of Lorne 1 ;)U
Q

Maxie Richards Foundations 3 )
(o))}

Trust Housing 1 -

Total 25

The evaluations were consistently good, with average scores between 4 (very good) and 5 (excellent ) in all categories.

Level 3 Training:
Council Officer Refresher Sessions

As agreed in the new Training Framework above, it was decided that rather than simply purchase the training available, it would be
more useful to ask council officers what training they felt would be most helpful for them, and tailor the training provided
accordingly. The Council Officer Learning and Development Framework developed by the West of Scotland training leads was

53



used as the basis for a questionnaire for those staff appointed as council officers. A low number of responses were received but a
number of common themes emerged and many of these were incorporated in the council officer refresher sessions held early in
2015.

All staff in the social work teams who had been appointed as council officers had undertaken an update on local procedures
between January and March 2013. However, the case file audits of 2014 demonstrated a degree of inconsistency between the
teams and the areas in the way that they were leading adult protection investigations. It was therefore agreed that compulsory
refresher sessions be held for these staff early in 2015. They were open to second workers, too, to provide a mix of staff who
attended.

The aim of the half day course was to ensure that council officers and second workers continued to have the necessary knowledge
to deal with adult protection cases. The session reminded staff of the essential elements of the Act and of local procedures
regarding ASP and provided a refresher of good practice in adult support and protection. Like the ASP Act in Practice training, work
on specific case studies provided the attendees with the opportunity to consider how a variety of scenarios may be best
approached so that the duties of all agencies are fulfilled and the principles of the Act followed when working with adults at risk.

IN all 85 staff attended the sessions, with all except 1 council officer participating.

29 ebed

The evaluations were consistently good, with average scores between 4 (very good) and 5 (excellent ) in all categories.
Case Conference Chairing

Following previous case conference chairing training in February 2013, there had been only minor changes in the pool of case
conference chairs in 2014. A refresher session was held in August 2014 for 6 chairs and an “Aide Memoire” was produced for them
in order to remind them of the essential tasks when chairing such a meeting.

Recording and Defensible Decision Making

In response to the inconsistency noted in the 2014 case file audits, an external trainer was commissioned to provide a day-long
session for team leaders and a number of council officers on recording and defensible decision making. This was held in November
2014 and was attended by 19 staff. At the suggestion of those who attended this session will be run again in September 2015 for
those council officers unable to attend the previous day.

54



The Interface between Child Protection and Adult Protection

During 2014 it was recognised that the interface between Adult Care and Children and Families social work teams was not always
as effective as should be expected. This was particularly concerning where there were potential adult and child protection issues
identified in a case. Joint Guidance on the Interface between child protection and adult protection was produced jointly by the APC
and CPC and a number of briefing sessions set up for staff from Adult Care, Children and Families, Education and a number of
other agencies.

These were run by the lead officer adult protection and the interagency child protection training co-ordinator. The aim of the
sessions was to enable staff to develop a shared awareness and understanding of the links between adult protection and child
protection in practice. In all 6 sessions took place, with 105 staff attending from the following organisations:

Agency Number
A&B Council 73
T
NHS Highland 24 2
D
Voluntary/3 Sector 8 (o))
w
Total 105

The feedback on the sessions was consistently good, with appreciation frequently shown for the opportunity to reflect on practice in
these areas.

55



5.1.2. Monitoring and Overview of Training Activity by the Sub-Committee

e The majority of the training provided in 2014-15 was published on the Argyll and Bute Council website as part of the ongoing
training programme. This proved a successful way of ensuring that the information was widely available and easily
accessible for most organisations, with all partner agencies asked to pass on the link to the appropriate webpage to their
contacts. The booking of places through the site was straightforward and easily managed internally and the sub-committee
agreed to continue to use this model of advertising the training in 2015.

e The Policy and Training Sub-Committee also maintains an overview of the course evaluations and has been pleased to note
that these have remained consistently high.

e During 2014 it was recognised that simply evaluating the appreciation of the training at the end of the session was not
enough, and that it was important to ty to capture whether the learning has had an impact on the day-to-day work of the
attendee. The sub-committee therefore devised a post-training questionnaire that is sent out to attendees 3 months after
attendance at any of the courses. It seeks to gain information as to whether the attendee has used the information acquired
in their daily work and whether they have made — or considered making- an adult protection referral. The responses are
shared with the sub-committee on a quarterly basis: any specific individual issues are dealt with by the lead officer adult
protection as they are received, and any general points are highlighted for discussion by the sub-committee. Overall
responses remain low, not unexpectedly, but feedback remains good that the staff who attended the courses have shared
the information with colleagues and are using the information gained in their working lives.

19 abed

5.2. PUBLIC AWARENESS OF ADULT SUPPORT AND PROTECTION

Raising the profile of adult support and protection remains high on the agenda of Argyll and Bute’s APC.

It was agreed that rather than set up a new sub-group, the existing sub-committee should take on this responsibility and the
membership was increased to include one of the Council’'s Communications Officers. With their assistance a communications
strategy was developed and has included various actions such as additional press releases and additions to the website.

56



5.2.1. Citizens panel:

In the autumn of 2012 the APC had undertaken a first survey of knowledge of adult support and protection using the Citizens Panel.
This showed that only 27% of respondents were aware that adults now had the legal right to be protected from harm. This figure
was clearly disappointing but provided a baseline against which to compare figures in the future.

In 2014 Citizens Panel members were asked if they had heard of adult support and protection, and the responses demonstrated
that the percentage of respondents aware of ASP had now risen to 37%. Panel members were then asked where they had seen or
heard information about adult protection, with the answers providing some fascinating differences between the areas:

Bute and Helensburgh | MAKI oLlI Argyll and
Cowal and Lomond Bute
TV Advert 17% 26% 9% 18% 17%
Leaflets or 28% 30% 24% 64% 36%
posters
Council 9% 3% 22% 16% 14%
website
Local 52% 33% 22% 21% 31%
newspapers
Other 5% 9% 7% 2% 6%

Despite the differences between different areas, it is clear that leaflets and posters, and local newspaper articles are the most
effective means of promoting the topic, which is vital information as planning takes place for disseminating information.

Panel members were also asked where they saw leaflets or posters about adult support and protection. Again, interesting

differences between the areas are clear:

57

G9 abed



Location of | Bute and Helensburgh | MAKI oLl Argyll and
leaflets Cowal and Lomond Bute
Social work 10% 10% 13% 15% 13%
office

Police 5% 30% 8% 15% 14%
station

Library 43% 30% 29% 8% 23%
Health 62% 79% 58% 88% 75%
centre

Dentist 15% 15% 21% 4% 12%
Hospital 33% 42% 30% 27% 32%
Housing 0 0 13% 0 3%
Office

Care Home | 5% 0 0 4% 3%
Day Centre 0 0 0 15% 6%
Other 5% 0 4% 2% 3%

Crucially, it is clear that in all areas health centres are the best place for people to find out about adult protection.

To date all health centres have been sent new supplies of leaflets and posters every 6 months, and this will continue to be done,
drawing the attention of practice managers to the figures above and the importance of the information being displayed. As detailed
in Section 5 specific training is being offered to ensure that GPs have an improved understanding of adult support and protection
and their importance in the process, and in ensuring their engagement with the APC through an identified GP link.

58

99 abed



Because of the differences between areas, it is important that local work to raise awareness of adult protection is tailored to local
need, so the above information has been provided to the Area Forums so that they can make appropriate links with these venues to
ensure that they prioritise the ASP publicity materials.

5.2.2. Scottish Government Awareness Raising Campaign

After a number of delays, a publicity campaign initiated and funded by the Scottish Government took place between 9t February
and 8t March 2015. Considerable amounts of work were done nationally to raise awareness of adult support and protection, with
additional support provided locally.

Argyll and Bute had requested 100 posters using the national images but with a blank space for stickers to be attached, providing
local contact details for anyone wanting to report harm. Well over 200 posters were received — after the start of the campaign — and
these were distributed as widely as possible. Those assisting with the distribution placed them in health centres, hospitals,
pharmacists, local shops, leisure centres and any of location that would agree to take them.

The council’s communication team produced a press release based on the national information, and this was taken up and
published by the Dunoon Observer and the Helensburgh Advertiser. The communications team also arranged to use the images
from the campaign as one of the banner headlines on the Argyll and Bute council website, with the ability to click through the
headline to the ASP pages. In addition they used the social media guidance from the national campaign to produce regular
facebook and twitter comments drawing attention to the issues raised. The social media strategy was shared with other partner
agencies, but as many have national rather than local web-based communications the bulk of the social media posts were done by
the council.

L9 ebed

In order to assist with raising awareness of financial harm, letters were sent to all banks and building societies in Argyll and Bute
drawing their attention to the campaign and sending them leaflets and offers of further information about harm.

Following the campaign the Scottish Government asked councils for information to gauge the effectiveness of the publicity
produced. And responses were submitted to each of the questions asked, as follows:

e We were asked if there had been a rise in in the number of referrals during or just after the campaign. In all there were 46
referrals in the 4 week period just prior to the campaign, and 44 during the campaign.

59



The web team supplied the following information:

We were asked how many were taken further under adult support and protection: there were 4 investigations in the 4 week
period just prior to the campaign, and 4 that resulted from referrals made during the campaign.

We were asked to provide details of the number of hits to the webpages in the weeks just before the campaign and for
during the weeks of the campaign and about the “website bounce rate” both during and prior to the campaign.

Web page Page views Unique page | Time spent Bounce rate
views on page

Social care

Before and health 12 (100%) 12 (100%) 00.02.06 50%
APC
Adult

Before protection 78 (36.28%) | 58 (43.94%) | 00.00.48 46.67%
Social care

During and health 21 (91.30%) | 15(88.24%) | 00.00.54 66.67%
APC
Adult

During protection 37 (68.52%) | 34 (68%) 00.01.06 50%

It is clear from the above information that there was no rise in referrals or noticeable rise in visits to the relevant web pages during
the campaign, but it is perhaps naive to suppose that awareness of harm rises so quickly. The national campaign is only one
element of the Argyll and Bute adult support and protection communications strategy, and other work continues to be done to raise
awareness of this issue. Awareness levels will continue to be measured through the Citizens Panel, as this also provides us with
detailed data as to where best to target our efforts to make people aware of the need to identify and report harm.

60

g9 abed



6. COMMUNITY SAFETY, CO-OPERATION, PARTNERSHIP AND LEARNING
6.1. Public Protection Arrangements

As detailed in Section 1 strategic leadership and scrutiny to the three public protection areas of Child and Adult Protection and the
Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangements for High Risk Offenders (MAPPA) are provided through the Chief Officers Group
Public Protection (COGPP).

In line with the APC’s constitution, this will be reviewed again in September 2015 when the Committee undertakes its annual self-
evaluation. This APC meeting has been postponed from its usual August date so that the findings from the recent Older Peoples
Joint Inspection in relation to adult support and protection may be considered. Membership will also need to be reconsidered in the
light of the ongoing management changes as Adult Care and the NHS integrate, as it is essential that the key personnel who lead
the ASP agenda in their areas are represented at the meeting.

6.2. Communication Between Agencies in Practice

Feedback from partners within the APC continues to suggest that in general communication between the agencies is good.

Ongoing quality assurance and case file audits both report that most adult protection inquiries demonstrate multi-agency liaison and
follow up, and that all adult protection investigations involve the other organisations working with the adult. The agencies
represented at the self-evaluation day, too, reported very positively on partnership working where staff routinely work together to
protect adults at risk of harm.

A number of key elements of multi-agency work in adult protection have been included in the APC Improvement Plan in recognition
that it is only be ensuring the involvement of all key agencies that adults can best be supported in situations of risk:

6.3. Responses to adult protection referrals:

Although the council is lead agency for adult support and protection, the work undertaken when an adult protection referral is
received is to undertake multi-agency inquiries so that information is sought from other key agencies to determine whether or not
the adult is at risk, and ensuring that the appropriate support is available to them. Two qualitative measures form part of Outcome 2
of the APC Improvement Plan: Adults receive an effective integrated response if concerns are expressed that they may be at risk
of harm

61

69 abed



One measure is that 95% of adult protection referrals demonstrate the involvement of partner agencies in assessing whether or not
an adult is at risk of harm

e In 2014-15 95.3% of all referrals demonstrated the involvement of partner agencies
The other is that 95% of adults not found to be at risk of harm are offered appropriate information and/or support

e [n 2014-15 97.6% of referrals demonstrated that the adult found not to be at risk of harm was offered appropriate information
and/or support

It is extremely encouraging that both these indicators have been met as they are key to ensuring that adult protection work is multi-
agency from the outset and that even where it is clear that adult protection procedures are not required, the adult and their issues
are treated seriously and they are provided with a service to meet their needs.

6.4. Adult Protection investigations, case conferences and protection plans:

From the conclusion of an adult protection referral that the adult is at risk, all aspects of the work that follows should be multi-
agency, and a number of measures of this aspects of key stages are measured in Outcome 3 of the APC Improvement Plan: -
Where an adult is found to be at risk of harm, partner agencies work together to investigate the risks and take action to protect
them.

0/ ebed

The measures include the following:

100% of adult protection investigations demonstrate multi-agency work
e In 2014-15 96% of the investigations done involved multi-agency work

100% of adult protection case conferences demonstrate that appropriate multi-agency staff were invited
e 77.7% of case conferences ensured that appropriate multi-agency staff were invited

100% of adult protection case conferences demonstrate that appropriate multi-agency staff attend or send a report
e 67.3% of case conferences had full attendance by the invited staff or a report from them

62



100% of protection plans demonstrate the involvement of partner agencies
e 100% of protection plans were multi-agency

Although these measures demonstrate that not all of the ambitious targets were met, they are an important indication of a high level
of multi-agency work being done here. Only a tiny number of investigations were not appropriately multi-agency, key staff from
other agencies were invited to most meetings where an adult was considered at risk, and although full attendance was not
achieved, a high degree of participation is taking place. It is clear from the more detailed records kept in the Scorecard (see
Appendix 1) that it is most often GPs who fail to attend such meetings. Work was done some time ago with NHS Highland to
ensure that funding was available for replacement cover when they were expected to attend such meetings and the additional

training that has now been offered to GP practices may well assist in raising the profile of adult protection and the importance of the
GPs participation.

|, ebed

63



7. CONCLUSIONS, RECOMMENDATIONS AND FUTURE PLANS

In my conclusion to the 2012-14 Biennial Report, | stated that much progress had been made, and that in the immediate future we
must make sure that

1.
2.

s

5
6.
We cannot claim to have completely resolved any of these issues, but in all of them we can report progress.

1.

64

all those referred are offered advocacy
we progress all referrals within our challenging timescales
the range of referral sources continues to widen — and widen rapidly

we understand much better the impact of our interventions

. understand the rising tide of financial harm — and address it

raise awareness of Adult Support and Protection; in this we will need the help and support of the Scottish Government

Z. ebed

In 2013-14 only 45.3 of adults who were the subject of an adult protection investigation were offered advocacy. In 2014-15
this has risen to 82.5%

In 2013-14 71% of adult protection referrals had the initial inquiries completed within 5 working days, in 2014-15 this fell to
67%, but additional work is being undertaken within the social work teams to address this issues.

The range of referral sources has continued to broaden, with referrals this year from more organisations that ever before. An
indication of this is the gradual reduction now being seen in the percentage of referrals from the police. In 2013-14 they
made 57.9% of all referrals, in 2014-15 this had fallen marginally to 56.7%.

As described in Section 2, the importance of gaining meaningful feedback from adults and carers has been recognised and a
short-life working group was set up to develop appropriate ways of doing this, then using the information gained to improve
our services.



5. Financial harm has continued to increase, with a wide variety of cases dealt with this year. The impact of these sometimes
extremely serious cases of financial loss has been recognised and the topic of Argyll and Bute’s first adult protection
conference taking place in November 2015 will be financial harm.

6. The response to the Citizens Panel in Autumn 2014, and the increase in referrals from members of the public, family
members and friends demonstrate that awareness of adult protection is rising. The brief Scottish Government publicity
campaign assisted with this, but it is too early yet to be clear of the level of impact that it had.

The APC Improvement Plan and scorecard covering 2014-15 is attached at Appendix 1. The performance measures will continue
to be collected throughout 2015-16. These and the results of the case file audits in August 2015 and the annual self-evaluation day
in November 2015 will be used to form the basis of the Committee’s consideration as to what to include in its next improvement
plan. Feeding into this process will be the assessment provided by the Joint Inspection of Older Peoples Services due in August
2015 and the feedback from the Minister on the Biennial report submitted last year.

It is planned that in early 2016, the Adult Protection Committee will undertake a major review of the future direction of travel. We
will be looking beyond mere incremental change. Rather we shall be contemplating significant change. Adult Support and
Protection is no long a new issue. It has been mainstreamed. We shall be deciding how to develop this established responsibility
in an environment where health and social care are fully integrated. We aim to up our game to be even more effective in this new
environment.

¢/ abed

65



66

Appendix 1

Act

ag ains t Argyll and Bute Adult Protection Committee
harm

ARGYLL AND BUTE APC IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR ADULT PROTECTION

April 2014 - 2016

) ebed



ACTIVITY SUCCESS MEASURE PERFORMANCE LEAD AGENCY TIMESCALE REPORT TO 2014-15
INDICATOR
& REP APC ADULT
CARE
SERVICE
PLAN
OUTCOME 1 - Adults at risk are identified promptly and reported appropriately
Clear public information exists | Public information is provided | 100% of ASP literature will | Multi-agency Annual re- Quarterly
explaining harm, who may be | and published as widely as be reviewed on an annual | activity through distribution report from
considered an adult at risk of | possible (and in appropriate basis and re-distributed to | members of September/ | Policy and
harm and how to report harm | formats) so that it is easily appropriate locations Policy and Training sub-
available to all training sub- October group minutes
group
The effectiveness of public 2% increase in referrals Figures collated Quarterly Quarterly

awareness campaigns are
measured through an increase
in referral rates from a
number of sources

from social work, NHS, and
care/support provider staff

2% increase in referrals
from adults at risk, their
friends, relatives and local
community

Carefirst AP referral
numbers/sources

by Area Manager
AP, report to
NHS ASP sub-

group

report on ASP
Statistics

67

G/ ebed



Training is available to staff
from social work, NHS and
care and support providers in
the statutory, voluntary and
independent sectors

A training programme for
the year is provided,
publicly available and open
to staff from all agencies

Training provided
and published by
social work on
council website

Distribution to
staff in social
work and NHS
done by each
agency

Commissioning
and contracts
staff distribute to
provider services

Annual in
January

Quarterly
report from
Policy and
Training Group
minutes

Attendance by staff from
all agencies to be
monitored

Figures collated
by Area Manager
AP

Figures reported

Quarterly

Quarterly
report from
Policy and
Training Group
minutes

68

9/ abed



to multi-agency
Policy and
Training sub-
group

Any
demonstrable
lack of
attendance to be
identified by
group and dealt
with by
appropriate
agency

69

)] abed



ACTIVITY SUCCESS MEASURE PERFORMANCE LEAD AGENCY TIMESCALE REPORT TO SOURCE
INDICATOR
& REP APC

OUTCOME 2 - Adults receive an effective integrated response if concerns are expressed that they may be at risk of harm
All partner agencies will work | All partner agencies are able 2% increase in referrals Figures collated Quarterly Quarterly
together to ensure they are to demonstrate a clear from social work, NHS, and | by Area Manager statistical
able to evidence clear, understanding of the guidance | care/support provider staff | AP report
consistent guidance on adult and make referrals
support and protection and appropriately
how to report concerns Carefirst AP referral

numbers/sources
Social work teams will work to | When adult protection 80% of adult protection Area Managers, Quarterly Quarterly AC-02
ensure that all concerns and referrals are received by social | referrals received by social | social work, for report statistical
referrals receive a prompt and | work teams they receive a work will have the initial B&C, H&L, MAKI, report
appropriate response timely and professional inquiries completed within | OLI

response 5 working days

Carefirst AP statistical

report
All agencies will ensure that Joint working is evident across | 95% of adult protection Area Managers, Quarterly Quarterly AC-01
they work together to assess | the partnership in relation to referrals demonstrate the | social work, for statistical
whether or not an adult is at assessing whether or not an involvement of partner B&C, H&L, MAKI, report AC-03

risk of harm

adult is at risk of harm

agencies in assessing
whether or not an adult is

OLI

70

g/ abed



at risk of harm

Internal quality audit

All agencies must work
together to ensure that,
where the adult is not at risk
of harm, they receive
information and support as
appropriate

Adult not at risk of harm are
offered appropriate
information and/or support

95% of adults not found to
be at risk of harm are
offered appropriate
information and/or
support

Internal quality audit

Area Managers,
social work, for
B&C, H&L, MAKI,
oLl

Quarterly

Quarterly
statistical
report

AC-01

AC-03

71

6. abed



ACTIVITY

SUCCESS MEASURE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

LEAD AGENCY

& REP

TIMESCALE

REPORT TO

APC

SOURCE

OUTCOME 3 - Where an adult is found to be at risk of harm, partner agencies work together to investigate the risks and take action to protect them

Adult protection Joint working is evident across | 100% of adult protection Team Leaders, Quarterly Quarterly AC-01
investigations always involve | the partnership in relation to investigations social work statistical
partner agencies adult protection investigations | demonstrate multi-agency | teams, B&C, report AC-03
work H&L, MAKI, OLI
Internal quality audit
Adult protection case Case conferences invitations 100% of adult protection Team Leaders, Quarterly Quarterly AC-02
conferences always involve are extended to an case conferences social work statistical
multi-agency information appropriate variety of demonstrate that teams, B&C, report
sharing and decision making professionals who attend the | appropriate multi-agency H&L, MAKI, OLI
meetings staff were invited and that | and lead staff
those staff attend or send | from NHS and
a report Police Scotland
Internal quality audit
Where adults are considered Protection plans are 95% of case conferences Team Leaders, Quarterly Quarterly
at risk of harm, agencies work | developed jointly between take place within 15 social work statistical
together to put in place timely | partner agencies who work working days of the teams, B&C, report

plans to provide support and

together to support and

referral

H&L, MAKI, OLI

72

08 abed



ACTIVITY SUCCESS MEASURE PERFORMANCE LEAD AGENCY TIMESCALE REPORT TO SOURCE
INDICATOR
& REP APC
protection protect the adult at risk
100% of protection plans AP Case
demonstrate the conference
involvement of partner chairs from all
agencies agencies
Carefirst report and
internal quality audit
ACTIVITY SUCCESS MEASURE PERFORMANCE LEAD AGENCY TIMESCALE REPORT TO SOURCE
INDICATOR
& REP APC
OUTCOME 4 - Adults at risk receive a person-centred response to concerns about them
All partners will work to Adults who are the subject of | 100% of adults who are Team Leaders, Quarterly Quarterly AC-03
ensure that adults who are an adult protection the subject of an adult social work statistical
the subject of an adult investigation are well protection investigation teams, B&C, report
protection investigation are informed about the process are given information H&L, MAKI, OLI

given information about the
process

and have their communication
needs considered and support
provided where required

about the process and
their communication
needs are considered.

73

18 ebed



ACTIVITY SUCCESS MEASURE PERFORMANCE LEAD AGENCY TIMESCALE REPORT TO SOURCE
INDICATOR
& REP APC

Carefirst report
All adults who are the subject | Adults who are the subject of | 100% of adults who are Team Leaders, Quarterly Quarterly
of an adult protection will be | an adult protection the subject of an adult social work statistical
offered support to enable investigation are offered protection investigation teams, B&C, report
their views to be expressed advocacy are offered advocacy H&L, MAKI, OLI

Carefirst report
All adults who are the subject | All adults are supported to 100% of adults who are AP Case Quarterly Quarterly
of an adult protection attend their AP case the subject of an adult conference statistical
investigation are supported to | conference protection investigation chairs from all report

attend any case conference
and their views are clearly
recorded

are invited to their case
conference and have

supported to attend if they

wish to do so, and any

reason for non-attendance

is clarified and recorded

Internal quality audit

agencies

74

Z8 abed



ACTIVITY SUCCESS MEASURE PERFORMANCE LEAD AGENCY TIMESCALE REPORT TO SOURCE
INDICATOR
& REP APC
All adults who are the subject | All adults are able to feedback | 100% of adults who are Advocacy service | Quarterly Quarterly

of an adult protection
investigation are given the
opportunity to feedback on
whether they were listened to
and whether they feel safer as
a result of the process

to partner agencies whether
they feel they were listened to

the subject of an adult
protection investigation
are offered the
opportunity to provide
feedback on their
experience of the process

Report from advocacy
service

report to Adult
Protection
Committee

75

£g abed



Adult Protection Committee Improvement Plan Scorecard

Measure

Baseline Figure
April 2013 -
March 2014

1 April - 30 June
2014

1 July - 30
September 2014

1 October — 31
December 2014

1 January - 31
March 2015

OUTCOME 1 - Adults at risk are identified promptly and reported appropriately

100% of ASP literature will be reviewed No baseline To be reviewed in | Reviewed October | Reviewed October Reviewed October
on an annual basis and re-distributed to figure
appropriate locations Autumn O O O
2% increase in referrals from social work | 8 (please note
this is an average ‘ ‘
figure per quarter) 6 2 3 . S .
2% increase in referrals from NHS 11 (please note
this is an average ‘ O . O
figure per quarter) 10 13 5 19
2% increase in referrals from 15 (please note
care/support staff this is an average O .
figure per quarter) 16 13 ‘ 8 . 9
2% increase in referrals from adults at 1 (please note
risk this is an average ‘ O O
figure per quarter) 0 ‘ 1 2 2
2% increase in referrals from relative, 4 (please note
friends or general public this is an average O
e 5 @7 @ |7 @ |
quarter)
OUTCOME 2 - Adults receive an effective integrated response if concerns are expressed that they may be at risk of harm
80% of adult protection referrals received | 71% (please note . . .
by social work will have the initial collected over last ‘

76

g abed



inquiries completed within 5 working 2 quarters of year | 72% 73% 60% 63%
days due to reporting
format change)
95% of adult protection referrals
demonstrate the involvement of partner
agencies in assessing whether or not an 94% 90% ’ 98.5% O 95% O 98% O
adult is at risk of harm
95% of adults not found to be at risk of
harm are offered appropriate information O O O O
95% 97% 98.5% 96% 99%

and/or support

OUTCOME 3 - Where an adult is found to

be at risk of harm, p

artner agencies work together to investigate the risks and take acti

on to protect them

100% of adult protection investigations 99.6% 100% 93% 91% 100%
demonstrate multi-agency work O ‘ ’ O

1 not multi-agency | 1 not multi-agency
100% of adult protection case 100% 100% 78% ’ 33% ‘ 100%
conferences demonstrate that O
appropriate multi-agency staff were O 2 did not invite 1 did not invite health
invited health staff staff, 1 did not invite

police

100% of adult protection case 58.3% 66% 28.5% 100% 75%

conferences demonstrate that
appropriate multi-agency staff attend or
send a report

GP and Police
failed to attend one
out of the 3 case
conferences

GPs invited but
failed to attend 5,
advocates failed to
attend 2

@

GP failed to attend
1, provider agency
failed to attend 2

77

Gg abed



95% of case conferences take place No baseline 75% 78% 33% 75%
within 15 working days of the referral figure ‘ ’ . .
Of 4 case Of the 9 case Of the 3 case 3 case conferences
conferences conferences, 2 conferences 2 were were delayed, all
required, 1 was were late (by 1 and | late but for good for good reasons
held late 2 days respectively) | reason
100% of protection plans demonstrate the 95.8% 100% 100% 100% 100%
involvement of partner agencies O O O
OUTCOME 4 - Adults at risk receive a person-centred response to concerns about them
100% of adults who are the subject of an 100% (please 100% 100% 100% 100%
adult protection investigation are given note info only O O
information about the process collected from last
2 quarters)
100% of adults who are the subject of an 86.1% 100% 89% 81% 86%
adult protection investigation have their ‘ ‘ ‘
communication needs considered O
| adult did not have | 2 adults did not have | 1 adult did not have
their their communication | their
communication fully | fully considered communication fully
considered considered
100% of adults who are the subject of an 45.3% 60% 93% 91%

adult protection investigation are offered
advocacy

| adult failed to be
offered advocacy
without good
reason

| adult failed to be
offered advocacy
without good reason

@

1 adult failed to be
offered advocacy
without good
reason

78

og abed



100% of adults who are the subject of an
adult protection investigation are invited
to their case conference and are
supported to attend if they wish to do so,
and any reason for non-attendance is
clarified and recorded

87.3%

100%

O

100%

O

100%

O

100%

@

100% of adults who are the subject of an
adult protection investigation are offered
the opportunity to provide feedback on
their experience of the process

No baseline
figure

Not yet captured

Not yet captured

Not yet captured

Not yet captured:
work ongoing
through service
user and carer
engagement

group

79

/.8 abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 89 Aagenda Item 6

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL HELENSBURGH &
LOMOND AREA
COMMITTEE

CUSTOMER SERVICES 8 DECEMBER 2015

AREA SCORECARD FQ2 2015-16

1 Background

1.1 This paper presents the Area Scorecard, with exceptional performance
for financial quarter 2 of 2015-16 (July - September 2015). Where
commentary has been entered in Pyramid, it is included here.

2 Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Area Committee
a) notes the exceptional performance presented on the Scorecard and
b) agrees the proposed changes at paragraph 3.1.

3 Area Scorecard Review
3.1 It is proposed that the following changes are made to the Area
scorecard as a result of Service changes.
a) Planning measures are no longer marked as ‘New’
b) In Education, the Curriculum for Excellence has new exams
replacing the old SCQF level 5 and 6 - National 4, National 5 and
new Higher. These have been added to the scorecard.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director, Customer Services

Jane Fowler
Head of Improvement & HR

For further information, please contact:

David Clements

Improvement and Organisational Development Programme Manager
(Planning and Performance Management)

01465 604205



Page 90

Argyll

%‘E:ﬁ’[ﬁ Helensburgh & Lomond Area Scorecard FQ2 15/16
COLIMCIL

Children and Families Targst [ — Cownc

CPS HEL - Mo of Children on CPR 6 * 35

CP16a HEL - No of Children on CPR with a 6 4 1z

completed CP plan

CABDS2 HEL - Open Cases - children with 12 = 118

disability

CA12 HEL - Total No LAAC 29 ¥ 1

CA17 HEL - No of Bxtemal LAAC 1 — 7

CAZE HEL - % Reviews of LAAC Convensd

S 85 % 91% [ ¢ 94 o,
Economy Tangat PO Counc
HEL Business Gateway Customer satisfaction £5.0 % 82.0% B =

CC1 Affordable social sector new builds - HEL 0 0B+ 20

% of Pre-App Enquiries Processed in 20 working 750 % 330% 3 B4.E %

in H&L
ﬁ?ﬁ!.ﬁ]l Locs| Planning Apps: Ave no of Wesks
O s 2 o?  sove soeme s
anning : no _
Wesks 1o Detemmine - HEL BOWes  66Wk= D & 6.4 Wiz
nd. of Houssholder Planning Apps determined in

HEL 28 ir o1
nad. of Local {exd HH) Planning Apps -

determined in HAL s 163
Mo, of Other Planning Apps determined in H&L 12 - 73

Roads & Street Lighting Target 2 o Counglf

%% road ares resurfaced/reconstructed - HBL  srasis 3,31 % 424 O + 1.95 %
%% road ares surface reated - HEL rr a2 0,00 % 0.00% 3 + 12,42 %
%% Cat 1 road defects repaired tmeoushy - HEL 0% 93.9 %
% Cat 1 road defects repairs - rolling annual datz 94 %5

Streat lighting - 9% HEL faults repaired within 7 38 % %% [ & 95 5



Page 91

Environment T :Em
Car Parking income to date - HAL £1MmEs8 £9385 R
Diog fouling - number of complaints HEL 12 18 H ¥
Dog fouling - number of fines issued HEL 3 3 ']
LEAMS - HAL Helensburgh 73 86 O i
Mo of Complaints ref Waste Collaction HEL & W

Education et :Em
Primary schools % attendance HAEL tem1ima T % 96B% O W
School %6 atmendance semmsgmscstomy remiimae 331 % S37% O U

H&L Taachars mosenoe par FTE oz 1miTe
HEL s s Teeares oz 13/2e
U positive destinations  Homfoge Acsfomy  acy 13714
Mationzl 4 %c pass rate  wowiog scafomy Aoy 1an1s
Mationad 5 % pass rate  Homioge scadomy  acy 14713
Mewr Higher % pass rate somfog scafomy Aoy 14712

Adult Care

HEL - % of Older People recefving Cars in the
HeL % of

HEL - 9 of (ider People recaiving Carz in the
Cormmrunity - In Year

HEL - Delayved Discharges awaming Admission
to 3 Care Home - In Year

HEL - No of LD Cases

HEL - %6 of LD Service Usars with a PCP
HEL - Total no of MH Cients
HEL - Mumber of SM Cients

1.75 Days 1.31 Deys [3 &
285 Days 160 Deys 3 &

9% U
99,10 %
57.30 %
73.00 %
Tarpe: HearRhiomh
& Lowmandg
B0 % %R i
80,0 % e o
1 &
108 08 o
B0 % 92 % [§ =
51 51 @
15 15 &

17

97.1%
91.0 %

1,18 Days

1,66 Days
91,5 %

5470 %
7480 %

7680 %

75 %
85.8 %
10

374

B9 %o

108



Success Measure Target | Actual FQ2 | Traffic | Trend Comments
FQ2 15/16 Light
15/16

Primary schools % 96.7% 96.2% Red Ascending No commentary in Pyramid

attendance H&L

H&L - % of Older People | 80% 75% Red Ascending No commentary in Pyramid

receiving Care in the

Community

H&L - No of People 0 0 Green | Constant Missing data There are issues with the system producing the

Awaiting FPC within their data. Finance are trying to resolve this for the reporting at the

Homes beginning of September.

CA17 - No of External 11 7 Green | Ascending | This remains on target and shows a reduction with two

LAAC children returned from an external residential placement this
quarter.

% Positive destinations 924 SLDR initial destinations will be reported in FQ3, with a follow
up report on the sustained destinations due to be reported in
FQ1 of session 2016/17.

Car Parking income to £108,868 | £93,859 Red Ascending | The level of car parking income remains overall below the

date - H&L target figure set, enforcement is continuing using the Amenity
Warden and the Amenity Services Enforcement Officers, with
the two hours free parking in Sinclair Street car park, this will
have an influence in the income levels.

No of Complaints ref 6 Ascending | Six complaints were registered through the FQ2 period, this

Waste Collection H&L

level of performance from our waste collection services is
very encouraging, considering the large number of properties
both domestic and commercial and also the different wide
range of services being delivered, from general waste
collections, kerbside co-mingle collections, glass recycling
and food waste kerbside collections.

26 abed



Success Measure

Target
FQ2
15/16

Actual FQ2
15/16

Traffic
Light

Trend

Comments

Dog fouling - number of
complaints H&L

12

18

Red

Descending

A total number of 18 complaints was received over the FQ2
period, with the local warden establishment now returned to
full capacity of three wardens, it is hoped that additional
patrols will act as a deterrent to dog fouling issue. The
service is very much aware of the public perception on this
issue and with additional patrols it would be hoped that we
can see a reduction in the complaint numbers. It would also
be hoped that local community forums would assist the
Council in dealing with this issue.

Dog fouling - number of
fines issued H&L

Ascending

Three dog fouling fines were issued during the FQ2 period,
this brings the total of fines issued to four over the past six
months. The difficulty in enforcing non-compliance with dog
fouling, is catching the owner in the act of failing to clean up
after their dog. Amenity Services continue to work closely
with community partners in an attempt to have their
assistance in accurate information which therefore allows to
warning letters or fines being issued.

LEAMS - H&L
Helensburgh

73

86

Green

Ascending

In the previous period of FQ1, the month of June has
dropped quite considerably from previous months, there has
been a major improvement over the FQ2 period with the
performance being July 82, August 86 and September 90.
Amenity Services are now in possession of a pedestrian
mechanical sweeping machine.

€6 abed



Success Measure Target | Actual FQ2 | Traffic | Trend Comments
FQ2 15/16 Light
15/16
% Cat 1 road defects 90% 94% Green | Descending | No of Cat 1 defects reported — 66 No. No of Cat 1 defects

repaired timeously

completed within the allocated period — 62 No. The overall
percentage of Cat 1 defects attended to within the allocated 5
day time period remains at a high level of 94% (97% last
quarter). The overall number of Cat 1 defects reported in the
second Quarter (66 No.) has fallen from that reported in the
first Quarter of 77No. However, the number of Cat 1 defects
reported for Q2 last year was only 25. This, however, is not
considered to be reflective of road surface condition, but
more related to this year's wet summer weather. Figures for
the Areas are as follows:- Bute and Cowal — 83%
Helensburgh and Lomond — 100% Mid Argyll, Kintyre and
Islay — 95% Oban Lorn and the Isles - 100%

16 abed



Page 95 Agenda Iltem 7a

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL HELENSBURGH AND LOMOND
AREA COMMITTEE
COMMUNITY SERVICES 8 December 2015

THIRD SECTOR GRANTS 2015/16 — Helensburgh Highland Games

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 A grant of £4,000 was awarded to Helensburgh Highland Games
committee in April 2015. The grant recipient cancelled their event at
late notice due to inclement weather.

1.2 At a special Area Committee meeting on 8 September 2015 and
subsequently at a Policy and Resources Committee meeting on 29
October 2015 agreement was made that due to the particular
circumstances any unspent funds could be retained by the grant
recipient, rather than the council, providing there was assurance of
the same event taking place in 2016.

1.3 To determine unspent funds the grant recipient has completed an
End of Project Monitoring Report (EPMR) for consideration by Area
Committee.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

21  That the Area Committee note the information provided by the
Highland Games Committee within the End of Project Monitoring
Report that the total spend was £10,228.44.

2.2 The Area Committee agrees that:

e There is no underspend from the £4,000 allocated to the
Highland Games Committee;

e There are no unspent funds for the Highland Games
Committee to carry forward from this year; and

e The Highland Games Committee is eligible to apply for the
maximum funding available through the Third Sector Grants in
2016.

3.0 DETAIL

3.1 A grant of £4,000 was awarded by the Area Committee to
Helensburgh Highland Games committee in April 2015. The event
was cancelled at late notice due to inclement weather.



4.0

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Page 96

For reasons pertinent to the auditing and administration of the
Third Sector Grants, the current TSG contract states that “The
Grantee shall ensure all funds are spent in the current financial
period and unspent funds returned....’

Advice from the Council’'s Governance and Law service indicated
that the Area Committee would have the discretion to agree a
variation to the contract, subject to the normal grant conditions.
This meant that if the Area Committee was minded to allow the
Helensburgh Highland Games to retain the funding from this
year’s grants, 2015/16, for the following year 2016/17, this would
need the approval of the Policy and Resources Committee.

A report was taken to the Policy and Resources Committee on 29
October 2015. The minute states that Policy and Resources
Committee agreed the following:

1. Without prejudice recognise the exceptional weather
circumstances that resulted in the cancellation of the entire
Helensburgh Highland Games and partial abandonment of
the Rosneath Highland Games and agrees:-

a) that grant recipients provide evidence to the council of the
costs incurred due to losses, to enable the amount of
“‘unspent grant” to be determined in each case;

b) a variation to the contract with both community
organisations to allow them to carry forward these ‘unspent
grant’ funds to 2016/17;

c) the organisation provide an assurance that the event is
planned to take place in 2016/17. In the event that the
organisation cannot provide an assurance, that ‘unspent
grant’ is refunded.

Information submitted by the Helensburgh Highland Games
Committee in the End of Project Monitoring Report (see appendix
1), states that the total expenses relating to this year’s cancelled
highland games are £10,228.44

The TSG recipient has also provided a written statement
confirming plans to organise the Games in 2016.

CONCLUSION

4.1

The processes followed by the Community Development officers
has been in accordance with the conditions contained in the
current contract with TSG recipients. There are no identified
unspent funds to be carried forward. Helensburgh Highland



Page 97

Games Committee is eligible to apply for the maximum grant
available through the Third Sector Grants fund in 2016.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Policy:
The existing TSG contract will be reviewed and amended to
reflect the decisions made at the Area Committee and Policy and
Resources Committee.

5.2 Financial: No unspent funds have been identified.

5.3 Legal: None

54 HR: None

5.5 Equalities Consistent with the Equal Opportunities policy of

Argyll and Bute Council.
5.6 Risk: None
5.7 Customer Service: None

Rona Gold
Community Planning Manager
Community Planning and Community Development

For further information contact: Audrey Baird, Community Development
Officer for Helensburgh and Lomond, Tel No: 01436 658735.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99
THIRD SECTOR GRANT- END OF PROJECT MONITORING REPORT
2014/15

The Council needs to account for all funding allocated. It is therefore a requirement that you
complete all sections of this form.

Name of Organisation: Helensburgh& Lomond Highland Games (HLG)
Contact Details: Sephton MacQuire, 38 Clydeview,12 E. Montrose St,
Helensburgh, Argyll G84 7HP
Project Funded: Highland Games
Grant Allocation: £4000

1 FEinance (Please provide a full breakdown of all costs).

Please notify your Area Community Development Officer ifthe funding received from the
Council isin excess of 50% of the total funding costs for any project/activity. Thereafter
arrangements will be made for reimbursement of the over-payment.

Projected Actual
Description (from original grant application form) Costs Costs
Security fencing, Toilet hire, marquee hire x3, vehicle and skip hire 7380 6396.65
Insurance, road closures & other legal costs, affiliations fees (Visit Scotland
& Scottish Highland Games Association) 2257 1019.44
Advertising, local Radio, marketing. 1621 2812.35
Total: 11258 10,228.44
Full total to run Games 31,639.00

Note: Please ensure that all funds allocated are spent by the end of March 2014, as any unspent
funds require to be returned to the Council.

2 Match Funding (Please provide details of any match funding received)

Grant Scheme Description Amount
Corporate 4030.00
Donations 6000.00

3 Did you meet the aims of the project- please give details? (The main facts and figures
about actual activities, for example the number of people the organisation or project worked with and
the main activities undertaken)

The HLG worked with the local schools and clubs to promote both athletic running and youth
Heavyweight competitions. Actively encouraged local adult participation inthe novice competitions.
Worked closely with local pipeband. Unfortunately the games were cancelled due to adverse

weather conditions which would have created unsafe environment for public and competitors.




Page 100

We immediately contacted Local radio stations to inform the public of the cancellations and all stall
holders and other contractors by telephone and email.

4 What difference did your service make? (This section should also include examples of how
individual participants/services users experienced the project/activity -case studies/quotes can be used)

N/A

5 Key Learning Points Please detail any unexpected outcomes (positive and negative) including
anything that would be done differently in the future.

Insurance againstweather was discussed atthe recent AGM ofthe Scottish Highland Games
Association who requested Helensburgh to advise members of their members on our procedures
taken on the cancellation and itwas agreed unanimously that it was not viable to take out insurance
against weatheras inthe lastthree years there has been an average of 11Games cancelled due to
adverse conditions. Insurance companies know of this and this has putthe premiums unaffordable
for the majority of Highland Games.

For future Games an alternative indoor venue will be sought to hold the Highland Dancing

6 Do you have any comments to help us improve the grant process?

Ifound the process to be easy and requires very little changes.

PLEASE GIVEBREAKDOWN INTERMS OFAGE AND GENDER

MALE | FEMALE 0-4 5-9 10-16 17-24 25-64 65+

HOW MANY PEOPLE Approx | All ages
BENEFITED FROM THE

GRANT?

Signature

Print name: Sephton Mac Quire
Position held in organisation: Chairman

Date: 7/11/2015

Please note: The Council reserves the nght to request coptes of all recetpts for expendtture.

PLEASE RETURN THE COMPLETED FORM TO: Margaret Fyfe, Community Development Manager, Community
Services, Library Headquarters, Highland Avenue, Sandbank, PA23 SPB.
Email: communitydevelopment@argyll-bute.gov.uk



mailto:communitydevelopment@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Page 101 Agenda Iltem 7b

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL HELENSBURGH AND LOMOND
AREA COMMITTEE
COMMUNITY SERVICES 8 December 2015

THIRD SECTOR GRANTS 2015/16 — Rosneath Highland Games

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1 A grant of £4,000 was awarded to Rosneath Highland Games
committee in April 2015. The grant recipient cancelled their event at
late notice due to inclement weather and subsequently reorganised
piping and highland dancing competitions at a later date.

1.2 At a special Area Committee on 8 September 2015 and
subsequently at a Policy and Resources Committee meeting on 29
October 2015 agreement was made that due to the particular
circumstances any unspent funds could be retained by the grant
recipient, rather than the council, providing there was assurance of
the same event taking place in 2016.

1.3 To determine unspent funds the grant recipient has completed an
End of Project Monitoring Report (EPMR) for consideration by Area
Committee.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

21 That the Area Committee note the information provided by the
Highland Games Committee that the total spend was £8,166.

2.2  The Area Committee agrees that:

e There is no underspend from the £4,000 allocated to the
Highland Games Committee;

e There are no unspent funds for the Highland Games
Committee to carry forward from this year; and

¢ The Highland Games Committee is eligible to apply for the
maximum funding available through the Third Sector
Grants in 2016.

3.0 DETAIL

3.1 A grant of £4,000 was awarded by the Area Committee to
Rosneath Highland Games committee in April 2015. The event
was cancelled at late notice due to inclement weather. The
committee subsequently reorganised piping and highland dancing
competitions at a later date.



4.0

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Page 102

For reasons pertinent to the auditing and administration of the
Third Sector Grants, the current TSG contract also states that ‘The
Grantee shall ensure all funds are spent in the current financial
period and unspent funds returned....’

Advice from the Council’'s Governance and Law service indicated
that the Area Committee would have the discretion to agree a
variation to the contract, subject to the normal grant conditions.
This meant that if the Area Committee was minded to allow
Rosneath Highland Games committees to retain the funding from
this year’s grants, 2015/16, for the following year 2016/17, this
would need the approval of the Policy and Resources Committee.

A report was taken to the Policy and Resources Committee on 29
October 2015. The minute states that Policy and Resources
Committee agreed the following:

1. Without prejudice recognise the exceptional weather
circumstances that resulted in the cancellation of the entire
Helensburgh Highland Games and partial abandonment of
the Rosneath Highland Games and agrees:-

a) that grant recipients provide evidence to the council of the
costs incurred due to losses, to enable the amount of
“‘unspent grant” to be determined in each case;

b) a variation to the contract with both community
organisations to allow them to carry forward these ‘unspent
grant’ funds to 2016/17;

c) the organisation provide an assurance that the event is
planned to take place in 2016/17. In the event that the
organisation cannot provide an assurance, that ‘unspent
grant’ is refunded.

Information submitted by the Rosneath Highland Games
Committee in the End of Project Monitoring Report (see appendix
1), states that the total expenses relating to this year’s cancelled
highland games and reorganised piping and dancing competitions
are £8,166.

The TSG recipient has provided a written statement confirming
plans to organise the Games in 2016.

CONCLUSION

4.1

The processes followed by the Community Development officers
has been in accordance with the conditions contained in the
current contract with TSG recipients. There are no identified



Page 103

unspent funds to be carried forward. Rosneath Highland Games
Committee is eligible to apply for the maximum grant available
through the Third Sector Grants fund in 2016.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Policy:
The existing TSG contract will be reviewed and amended to
reflect the decisions made at the Area Committee and Policy and
Resources Committee.

5.2 Financial: No unspent funds have been identified

5.3 Legal: None

54 HR: None

5.5 Equalities Consistent with the Equal Opportunities policy of

Argyll and Bute Council.
5.6 Risk: None.
5.7 Customer Service: None

Rona Gold
Community Planning Manager
Community Planning and Community Development

For further information contact: Audrey Baird, Community Development
Officer for Helensburgh and Lomond, Tel No: 01436 658735.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105

THIRD SECTOR GRANT - END OF PROJECT MONITORING REPORT Vi
2015/15 COUNCIL |

__—l

The Council needs to account for all funding allocated. It is therefore a requirement that you
complete all sections of this form.

1

Name of Organisation: RoonaX T PENNSIER R\ Gy Grweling
Contact Details: TUQMNA ST

Project Funded: Y\ QAR QeSS

Grant Allocation&_uroco

1 Finance (Please provide a full breakdown of all costs}.

Please notify your Area Community Development Officer if the funding received from the
Council is in excess of 50% of the total funding costs for any project/activity. Thereafter
arrangements will be made for reimbursement of the over-payment.

Projected Actual
Description (from original grant application form) Costs Costs
G e E toOuwES WSO | sie
iev Pad wecnooc \Soo I¥~e)
STe AT loa'e) HS0o
|\ PRelE oo Q3L
SO SR (RO 'S eSS 1S5S0 2o
OTAER 2 DRING a PO, FIEn Teacy oS WSO \e 30
P\ WG Ov.oqox««\ms*&\&m&_ SEmodaTy \loo |
WERe 7€ \ntns e NesT G| Soa= St
NCVES N = SR
TSRS o i
Note: Please ensure that all funds allocated are spent by the end of March 2015, as any unspent
funds require to be returned to the Council. Flop OO

2 Match Funding (Please provide details of any match funding received)

Grant Scheme Description Amount

3 Did you meet the aims of the project — please give details? (The main facts and figures

about actual activities, for example the number of people the organisation or project worked with and the
main activities undertaken)

Sont OF THIE AllMg OF TS VESSECT  \We e N\:\ 2 O ©\ D\z\\‘

A \“\\ Y\\,E\{"k\\ \\ML\N% T\J\l T \\.'C. S Q \{)\NL_\ ‘.\!r\c \}tl\-\\_, O
ST TOCOST A COMNOORE. Hove—, MEEERIE SElOR S0 QQNS
\ o OCTCRa .\ Wl ArTAG Y\ \\\,,\_4\"«\\\ A \CS"“-E\‘\\\S TR N AT U
cannaete WESTA— 30 AP oS = ) TUA = L AsvRo 10 —?\i\NC\JSL‘QWW-_s




Page 106

-

4 What difference did your service make? (This section should also include examples of how
individual participants/services users experienced the project/activity -case studies/quotes can be used)

e S = TS VWO TVIE. RUVENLER, Vo CantETe
ReCarnnE, TS PPNS T o T SN : e
?c;;wow{&w\m W E8Es IO ENCouefis ~Wiem forkTas
a0 AT (AR, DF WE AR P1eWs 1T WAS YO weberadc
— WE Lo O BUDW TUEM To PPEGETSS TURNGH TV
PR COZE TOZ WA ColdTs ARE RueEDy (VU ©

i(ﬁ\;:%a? R O\ GEDUS SOLD COSTSERS OF Wilad (Lo \ & Ol

TAE SemmaG PoiccEis Buee HPOVS T e AIGMLAND DVERINS

5 Key Learning Points Please detail any unexpected outcomes (positive and negative) including
anything that would be done differently in the future.

R oS mis OSTLome WA TS :‘;o\“\“ﬁg\uﬂ O Ve § 1hoae
ENUTS Vst T2 &0 0 Q_D\C)‘\r\k’; ?\\\5_‘3-)_5 NGRS, TRNARS,
VWAL QLLORED TIESE Bt 10 Co remacml

6 Do you have any comments to help us improve the grant process?

M= C‘&Q@o&‘(’ Coocaas (A QLoD U =0 N
—e Ceres. roe Ve EoEFTT OF TS oMY
WA RIOST TS T 00U NeT B Cots\Rue

PLEASE GIVE BREAKDOWN IN TERMS OF AGE AND GENDER

MALE | FEMALE 04 5-9 10-16 17-24 25-64 65+
HOW MANY PEOPLE
BENEFITED FROM THE | < Q0 — $O uwo | R Do 1O
GRANT?
Signature _ _ . '
%ﬂe&q&«\ o e
Print name: _
Al Soar
Position held in organisation: SeC O C\'?\Q—‘\
Date: ANV NOlEM R AS

Please note: The Council reserves the right to request copies of all receipts for expenditure.

PLEASE RETURN THE COMPLETED FORM TO: Rebecca Stokes, Community Development, Library Headquarters,
Highland Avenue, Dunoon, PA23 8QZ.
Email: communitydevelopment@argyll-bute.gov.uk




Page 107

Ao N0 oS
e )

funes) BRNe,

&;:Ll 'é?‘é sl o) st A&s ag\s\&s\\o .

R IR U
d_;_,.e_b"’{\Q &Cﬁ"?\\\s ;“

?,m ; - rendon. oL W \\\mé%*\uﬁé
: Q“é P 2o ¢ Be A ‘S%ﬁm& O
O B “ &

b.w\&% \Rsn ©< k\w«s\\fﬁt&ﬁc&ém& Sosma\sy

A

\ \ e \and
'S et e SAGRSA Mo ald e
%&miii,e\cgw &\ m\e_\&é\w 'S-_\u_&\‘éc\

A mn. X 08 Aay NeeaX e
ﬁ_mow \&4‘3& < &ﬂm' Q&@h
T a

R

Argvll .
%B%)tfe @

COUNCIL

LOTTERY FUNDED

AWARDS

FOR ALL . e

SCOTLAND baboods Ob‘t,
[och




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109 Agenda Item 8

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL HELENSBURGH AND LOMOND
AREA COMMITTEE
COMMUNITY SERVICES 8 December 2015

THIRD SECTOR GRANTS 2015/16 — update on funds remaining

1.0

2.0

3.0

SUMMARY

1.1 Funds of £1,644 were offered in a third round of grant funds in
2015/16. No applications were received.

1.2 An award of £4,000 granted in 2015/16 has not been drawn down by
the applicant.

RECOMMENDATIONS

21  That Area Committee note that the carry forward of funds to
2016/17 will be £5,644.

DETAIL

3.1 A conditional award of £4,000 was granted to The Tower by the
Area Committee in April 2015 for a festival called Innovate, which
was intended to celebrate the life and achievements of John Logie
Baird. The award was subsequently reconsidered at the June
Area Committee and was again approved with conditions. These
conditions have not been met by The Tower.

3.2  The conditions on the grant included the standard requirements
that applicants must submit a signed set of annual accounts (or
projected accounts if the organisation is less than a year old)
and a current bank statement. An additional condition of the
award was that the applicant must be successful in securing
funding from Creative Scotland and Event Scotland.

3.3  Further to this, following the departure of the Project Director,
The Tower has subsequently shelved plans for the Innovate
festival in favour of organising three smaller festivals, unrelated
to John Logie Baird, in 2016. The Tower is now planning three
smaller festivals in 2016. These are:

1. The Festival of Voice, which will take place over 3
days, bringing together choirs from all over the world
to Helensburgh a week before The Edinburgh
Festival;



3.4

3.5

Page 110

2. Buildings in The Burgh - A 3 day festival celebrating
the world class Architecture in Helensburgh and the
surrounding area; and

3. John Muir Film Festival - A 3 day festival which will
celebrate wildlife film making and bring together
filmmakers and environmentalists to discuss ideas,
projects and issues facing conservation and ecology.

Gibson Community Centre Committee was awarded a grant of
£2,514 at the Area Committee in August 2014 to support a
refreshed programme of community events to help raise funds for
the Centre and attract new members of the community to use it.
An agreed underspend of £1,644 was returned to the Council.

A recommendation to hold a third round of TSG funding in
Helensburgh and Lomond to reallocate the returned funds was
approved at the August Area Committee. No applications were
received.

4.0 CONCLUSION

4.1

It is recommended that the third sector grant funding available for
community groups in Helensburgh and Lomond in 2016/17 include
the carry forward of funds from previous years due to project
underspends.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
5.5

5.6
5.7

Rona Gold

Policy: None
Financial: Carry forward of funds to next financial year.
Legal: None
HR: None

Equalities Consistent with the Equal Opportunities policy of

Argyll and Bute Council.

Risk: None
Customer Service: None

Community Planning Manager
Community Planning and Community Development

For further information contact: Audrey Baird, Community Development
Officer for Helensburgh and Lomond, Tel No: 01436 658735.



Page 111 Agenda Item 9

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee
DEVELOPMENT AND
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 8 DECEMBER 2015

ROADS REVENUE BUDGET - 2015 to 2016 — 2nd QUARTER UPDATE

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the roads revenue budget position at the
end of the 2nd Quarter of financial year 2015/16.

1.2 2015/16 Budget - The overall roads maintenance budget for the 2015/16 year (excluding
winter maintenance and coastal protection) is £3,912,226. The roads maintenance budget
for the 2015/16 year (excluding winter maintenance, coastal protection and centrally
allocated budgets) for the Helensburgh and Lomond area, is £617,904, of which, £188,313
has been spent at the end of the 2nd Quarter — or 30%.



Page 112

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee
DEVELOPMENT AND
INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 8 DECEMBER 2015

ROADS REVENUE BUDGET - 2015 to 2016 — 2nd QUARTER UPDATE

2.0 SUMMARY

2.1 This report follows-on from the report presented earlier in the year at the October Area
Committee, which provided information on road maintenance revenue activities being
delivered in Q1 2015/16

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That the Committee notes this report.

4.0 DETAILS

The Roads Operations Budget is proposed in line with the Roads Maintenance and
Management Strategy and the Roads Maintenance and Asset Management Plan (RAMP).
The available revenue budget is currently insufficient to allow all of the required works to be
fully undertaken.

Roads revenue expenditure is closely monitored by separating types of work into different
‘activities’. This report is based solely upon financial information which has been collated
through the ‘Total’ costing system. Budgetary figures provided in the Appendices to this
report represent spends to the end of Q2 for the present financial year. Winter
maintenance and coastal protection costs have been excluded from this report.

Appendix 1 shows the overall roads revenue maintenance budget for 2015 to 2016 for each
area. The overall roads maintenance budget for the 2015/16 year (excluding winter
maintenance and coastal protection) was £3,912,226 as indicated in the table.

Appendix 2 provides information on percentage spend at the end of Q2 for 2015/16 for each
area

Appendix 3 shows spend at the end of Q2 for all activities in the Helensburgh and Lomond
area this financial year 2015/16.

Appendix 4 shows graphically Helensburgh and Lomond budget profiles. Profiles are set for
each budget line and are used to manage actual expenditure against available budget.
Appropriate action has been taken over the financial year to achieve a level of satisfactory
performance, whilst ensuring that we work within the available budget. The Graph shows
‘target’ spend (the black line) versus ‘actual’ spend (the red line)



Page 113

5.0 CONCLUSION

This report provides Members with a financial update on the roads revenue maintenance budget
for Helensburgh and Lomond area at the end of Q2 2015/16. It indicates that 30% of the roads
maintenance revenue budget has been spent. Spending profiles for Q3 & Q4 have been adjusted
with the focus now on Revenue spend, Cyclic maintenance and Housekeeping.

In Q1 and Q2 the Helensbugh team focused on Capital Projects and have successfully completed
a program valued at £610,000. Surface Dressing operations were carried out be an external
Contractor but preparatory works and pre Surface Dressing patching was completed by Council
Staff. A Roads Resurfacing program valued at £194,000 was successfully delivered by the Roads
Area team.

There is still some external funding to spend in Helensburgh and Lomond — the SPT Clycle Way
£200,000, SPT Bus Stops £40,000 and these works will be addressed in Q3 and Q4 when the
Helensburgh and Lomond team will be periodically bolstered by squads from other areas ensuring
that actual spend v’s spend projections are reasonably aligned in the Helelensburgh and Lomond
area.

Further quarterly reports will continue to be presented to Members at future Area Committees.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Policy Works assessed and carried out under the current
Roads Asset Management and Maintenance Plan.

6.2 Financial The available Roads revenue budget is below that
required in terms of the RAMP.

6.3 Legal None

6.4 HR Roads revenue maintenance works are delivered by
both Roads Operations and Amenity Operatives.

6.5 Equalities None

6.6 Risk Deterioration of road network if budget not spent
effectively.

6.7 Customer Services Maintains service level commitment set out in Service
Plan.

Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure

Policy Lead Clir Ellen Morton
Head of Roads & Amenity Services Jim Smith
28 August 2015

For further information contact: Kevin Mcintosh, Roads Performance Manager,
Tel: 01546 604621



Page 114

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — 2015/16 - Roads Revenue Budget

Appendix 2 — 2015/16 — End of Quarter 2 Budget Spend

Appendix 3 — 2015/16 — Budget Spend Q2 Detail — Helenburgh and Lomond
Appendix 4 — 2015/16 — End of Q2 — Spend profiles (Helensburgh and Lomond)

APPENDICES



Roads Revenue Maintenance Budget 2015 to 2016

2015-16 R10 Roads Maintenance Budget

Activity Activity Description Mid Argyll MAKI Lorn Mull OLI Bute Cowal

0201 Resurfacing 0 0 0 0 0 0' 0 0 0
0301 Anit Skid Treatment 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0] 0 0
'0501 Patching 80,783 80,782 80,782 242,347 144,874 72,437 217,311 51,109 119,254
'0502 Potholing 39,788 39,788 39,788 119,364 133,518 66,759 200,277 21,904 51,110
0701 Bridges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
'0801 Cattle Grids 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
'1001 Footways/Kerbs 2,033 2,033 2,033 6,099 4,067 2,033 6,100 3,003 7,007
"1002 Cycleway/Patching 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
"1301 Remedial Earthworks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
'1401 Drainage/Culverts 15,600 15,600 15,600 46,800 46,867 23,433 70,300 14,700 34,300
'1402 Drainage/Ditches 50,363 50,363 50,363 151,089 100,907 50,453 151,360 25,380 59,220
'1601 Scrub/Tree Maintenance 2,100 2,100 2,100 6,300 10,867 5,433 16,300 5,349 12,481
'1701 Roads Markings/Studs 10,400 10,400 10,400 31,200 20,800 10,400 31,200 7,176 16,744
'2001 Boundary Fences/Walls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
R101 Pedestrian Guardrails 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2201 Traffic Signals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
'2301 Traffic Signs 6,133 6,133 6,133 18,399 8,933 4,467 13,400 5,382 12,558
2311 I1lluminated Bollards 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
’2401 Vehicle Safety Fence 8,333 8,333 8,333 24,999 16,667 8,333 25,000 7,500 17,500
’2411 Street Name Plates 300 300 300 900 600 300 900 270 630
2501 Sweeping and Cleaning 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
’3201 Emergency Incidents 30,000 30,000 30,000 90,000 7,000 3,500 10,500 3,150 7,350
’3202 Summer Standby 3,000 3,000 3,000 9,000 6,000 3,000 9,000 2,700 6,300

Roads 248,833 248,832 248,832 746,497 501,100 250,548 751,648 147,623 344,454
'1501 Grass Cutting 28,373 28,373 28,373 85,119 49,653 24,827 74,480 15,960 37,240
'1503 Weed Spraying 3,933 3,933 3,933 11,799 12,193 6,097 18,290 3,363 7,847

Amenity 32,306 32,306 32,306 96,918 61,846 30,924 92,770 19,323 45,087
0503 Road Master 64,667 64,667 64,667 194,001 121,333 60,667 182,000 48,750 113,750
'1801 Gully Emptying 17,667 17,667 17,667 53,001 42,667 21,333 64,000 35,100 81,900

Fleet 82,334 82,334 82,334 247,002 164,000 82,000 246,000 83,850 195,650

363,472 1,090,417 726,946 1,090,418

B&C

0

0
170,363
73,014

10,500
9,000
492,077

53,200
11,210
64,410

162,500
117,000
279,500

835,987

Lomond

10,500
9,000
359,504

53,200
17,700
70,900

71,500
116,000
187,500

617,904

Appendix1

Central

o O o o

212,000
28,000

O O O OO0 oo oo

12,000
277,500

o

Total

0

0
712,588
428,042
212,000
28,000
36,999
0

0
225,000
457,999
61,000
104,000
0

0
21,000
62,999
4,500
99,999
3,600

0
121,500
48,000
2,627,226

266,000
59,000
325,000

610,000
350,000
960,000

Gl | ebed



Appendix 2

Roads Revenue Maintenance Budget 2015 to 2016

COMBINED AREA BUDGETS *
**Bridges /
Mid Argyll  Kintyre Islay MAKI Lorn Mull oL Bute Cowal B&C H&L |Cattle grids Total
etc.

Area Budget £363,472| £363,472| £363,472| £1,090,418| £726,946  £363,472| £1,090,418| £250,796 £585,191| £835,987| £617,904] £277,500 £3,912,227
Actual Spend - End of Q2 £196,188  £304,260 £268,395| £768,843| £438,914 £333,472| £772,386 £90,005  £355,344| £445,349| £188,313] £173,080| £2,347,971
Remaining Budget £167,284 £59,212 £95,077 £321,575| £288,032 £30,000 £318,032] £160,791  £229,847| £390,638| £429,591| £104,420| £1,564,256
Percentage Spend 54% 84% 74% 71% 60% 92% 71% 36% 61% 53% 30% 62% 60%

* Combined Area Budgets - See Appendix 1 for list of activities included.
** Remaining 'central budget' - Bridges, cattle grids, traffic signals, summer stand-by and illuminated bollards

91| ebed



Page 117

Appendix 3

Budget and Spend for Q2 — YTD Helensburgh and Lomond

Lomond Area Budget  Percentage

Activity Activity Description Budget Spendtodate  Remaining Budget Spent
0501 Patching 82,567 25,878 56,689 31%
0502 Potholing 35,387 11,685 23,702 33%
'0503 Road Master 71,500 34,822 36,678 49%
0701 Bridges 0 0 0 0%
0801  Cattle Grids 0 292 -292 100%
'1001 Footways/Kerbs 14,790 10,658 4,132 72%
1002 Cycleway/Patching 0 0 0 0%
1301 Remedial Earthworks 0 0 0 0%
'1401 Drainage/Culverts 58,900 19,472 39,428 33%
'1402 Drainage/Ditches 70,950 17,533 53,417 25%
'1601 Scrub/Tree Maintenance 20,570 8,441 12,130 41%
'1701 Roads Markings/Studs 17,680 9,225 8,455 52%
1801 Gul ly Emptying 116,000 25,904 90,096 22%
2001 Boundary Fences/Walls 0 51 -51 100%
2101 Pedestrian Guardrails 0 0 0 0%
2201 Traffic Signals 0 0 0 0%
2301 Traffic Signs 13,260 2,937 10,323 22%
2311 Illluminated Bollards 0 0 0 0%
2401 Vehicle Safety Fence 25,000 0 25000 0%
'2411 Street Name Plates 900 1,977 -1,077 220%
7501 Sweeping and Cleaning 0 0 0 0%
3201 Emergency Incidents 10,500 854 9,646 8%
'3202 Summer Standby 9,000 8,165 835 91%
Roads 547,004 177,895 369,109 33%

1501  Grass Cutting 53,200 10,418 42,782 20%
'1503 Weed Spraying 17,700 0 17,700 0%
Amenity 70,900 10,418 60,482 15%

617,904 188,313 429,591



Page 118

2nd Quarter Spend Profile - 2015/16

Appendix 4

Lomond All Activities - Monthly

£150,000
£120,000 ___Total Costsare
* actual costs up to and
£90 000 ;, including current month
/ \ with remaining months
£60.000 / \ / shown as a projection.
' » . *—o
.:—-.q.._.- —
£30,000 4 \ AN ¢ \./ ¢ Total Costs
i v w
o / —4—Budget
April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March
Lomond All Activities - Cumulative
£800,000
___Total Costsare
_®
£600,000 /0 o actual costs up to and
.-"’/ including current month
with remaining months
£400,000 —* s ith ining month
e shown as a projection.
>
£200,000 .,/ Cumulative Total
/ Costs
& —4=— Cumulative Budget
- g
0 | €

April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March




Page 119 Agenda Item 10

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL HELENSBURGH AND LOMOND AREA
COMMITTEE

CUSTOMER SERVICES 16th November 2015

CARE AT HOME

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to update the Local Area Committee on the
findings of the continuing quarterly evaluation of the Care at Home provision
within the Helensburgh and Lomond area and the performance of the
operational Adult Care Social Work Team

The report has been broken down to show the progress and joint working that
has been put into place to ensure that a high quality service is provided, as it is
recognised that this service is provided to vulnerable individuals predominately
by lone workers, in the home environment. .

The remit of the Procurement and Commissioning Team together with the
Homecare Procurement Officers is to ensure best value, contract compliance,
quality of services and customer satisfaction. This will support Community
Services to commission quality care at home services via the formal
procurement and commissioning procedures. There are a range of local
service providers who are working on established and new demand care plans
with an increasing number of more elderly, vulnerable and frail clients who
have complex care and support needs and it important to reflect on the
performance of these services.



Page 120

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL HELENSBURGH AND LOMOND AREA
COMMITTEE

CUSTOMER SERVICES 16t November 2015

CARE AT HOME

2. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to update the Area Committee on the findings of
the continuing quarterly evaluation of the Care at Home provision within the
Helensburgh and Lomond area.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Area Committee note the contents of the report.

4.CURRENT WORKLOAD

Operations Team as at 16/11/2015 - Helensburgh & Lomond

Number of Unallocated Cases After 5 Working Days 1
Number of Care Assessments outstanding over 28 days 3
Number of Carers Assessments outstanding over 28

days 0
Number of Adult Care Operational Cases 559

Learning Disability as at 16/11/2015 - Helensburgh & Lomond

Number of Unallocated Cases After 5 Working Days 0
Number of Care Assessments outstanding over 28 days 0
Number of Carers Assessments outstanding over 28

days 0

Number of Adult Care Learning Disability Cases 107



4.1

Page 121

Mental Health as at 16/11/2015 - Helensburgh & Lomond

Number of Unallocated Cases After 5 Working Days 0

Number of Care Assessments outstanding over 28 days 0

Number of Carers Assessments outstanding over 28

days 0

Number of Adult Care Mental Health Cases 39
CARE AT HOME PROVISION

Currently there are 3 providers on the contracting framework with an
additional 6 who provide services throughout the Helensburgh and Lomond
area. The continually increasing and consistently high level of demand for
home care services and the need to maintain an appropriately skilled and
diverse workforce which can manage the range of complex care needs that are
now a far more common characteristic of our services than before has
supported the need to continue to work with the range of providers who are
both on and off the established contracting framework.

As at the week ending 25/10/2015 an a total of 4,256.68 hours per week were
being delivered a further 376.29 hours are being delivered in the form of Direct
Payments. A breakdown of the provision is detailed in the table below: The
table has also been updated with the Weekly Commissioned hours at 20™ July
2015.

Existing Weekly Hours
Providers Commissioned
Hours at Hours at Hours at

20th 19th 25th

July Sep Oct

2015 2015 2015
Care UK 229.25 249.25 268.5
Allied 297.75 333.75 330.5
Carr Gomm 182.5 229.5 212.25
Carers Direct 507 505 469.18
Carewatch 136.25 152.75 157.25
M&J Nagy 986.75 1117.25 1,041.75
Premier 618.25 681.75 679.75
Healthcare
Quality Care 505.25 518 524.75
Alzheimer 37.5 37.5 37.5
Scotland
Joan’s Carers 522.75 520.25 508.25
Intensive home 24.5 24.5 27
care team

Total Hours | 4047.75 4369.5 4256.68
Direct payments 386.79 386.79 386.79
Total Hours | 4434.54 4756.29 4643.47




4.2

4.3

Page 122

RECRUITMENT/RETENTION

Recruitment of care staff, whether it be for Residential, Day Care Or Home
care services continues to be a serious on-going challenge across the Argyll
and Bute Council area. As a consequence of this Adult Services have
introduced IRISS (Institute for Research and Innovation in Social Services)
to try to assist both the Local Authority and Independent Sector. A
partnership project has now been established which is chaired and
supported locally by Scottish Care and Reshaping Care for Older People
Teams. IRISS aim is to bring the independent sector together to form an
informal partnership to address issues around the planning and delivery of
care at home services across Argyll and Bute. The group is looking at a joint
recruitment proposal, joint training and efficiencies that can be made utilising
dead time by reducing travel. Three meetings of this group have now taken
place with good support from Providers and Social Work staff. A further
meeting is planned to outline work undertaken to assist in recruitment and
retention. In addition, Adult Services are also working alongside our
Employability Partnership. The Partnership has agreed to take recruitment
within the care sector forward as one of their work streams. We are hopeful
that this will provide a recruitment event on a monthly basis in an area of the
authority.

The Council has also recently agreed a modern apprentice scheme and an
Adult Services representative will attend this group to maximise the
opportunities for care staff through this medium.

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Argyll and Bute Council’s Procurement and Commissioning team are
responsible for the Contract and Supplier management of these services.
This is complimented by the service monitoring and review process carried
out by Homecare Procurement Officers and Case Managers. The
Procurement and Commissioning Team carry out quarterly contract
management meetings that determine the risk rating of each contract. All
contracts are risk rated using a combination of Care Inspectorate grades,
service concerns and complaints. Additional monitoring is undertaken as
required where risk levels increase.

Breakdowns of the Care Inspectorate grades are detailed in the table below:



4.4

Page 123

Provider

Care Inspection Grades

Quality of
Care and
Support

Quality of
Staffing

Quality of
Management
and
Leadership

Allied

Carers Direct

Carewatch

Care UK

Carr Gomm

Joan’s Carers

M&J Care

Premier
Healthcare

Quality Care

A O (OB OIO

Al O (OB

W O [hOOWW OO

6— Excellent
5- Very Good
4- Good

MONITORING ARRANGEMENTS

3- Adequate
2- Weak
1- Poor

A robust ongoing monitoring programme is in place with both the Homecare
Procurement Officers and the Commissioning Monitoring Officer having
close contact with the external providers and service users.




4.5

Page 124

A detailed list of contact with service users and providers for the quarter is
detailed below:

Contact Target Actuals Comment
Review of Care needs | 82 144 On Target. We are
with service users, currently Work.ing to
family and providers. develop a review

framework which will
involve greater
involvement of
Health Service
colleagues.

Quarterly Contract and | 18 20 On Target
Supplier Meetings with
Providers in line with
the Scottish
Government Guidance
on the Commissioning
of Care and Support
Services

Provider Forums - 2 2 On Target
Reshaping care for
Older People meetings.

In addition to the case review activity a schedule of monitoring visits has
been agreed with providers and a process to report the outcome of these
visits to the Procurement and Commissioning Team has been developed:

Contact Target Actual Comments

Monitoring 27 27
Visits

SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS

There is a clear service improvement process in place and in the period 215t
July to 30" September 2015 there have been a total of 5 service concerns
received. All but 1 of these concerns have been fully investigated and the
appropriate action has been taken to ensure that these issues are addressed
by the providers.

An escalation protocol is in place whereby any initially unresolved concerns
are passed to Procurement and Commissioning Team for attention.

Number of lprelefen
Provider C Details of Concern appropriate action
EE—— oncerns
taken
Provider A 2 Missed Visits 1 — further action

Personal Care Issues required
1- ongoing




4.6

4.7

Page 125

Provider B 1 Carers behaviour 1 — further action
required

Provider C 2 Personal Care issues 2 — further action
required

For information — The above concerns (5) represent the total received in
between 21st July 2015 and End September 2015. The total weekly service
currently being delivered is 4756.29 as of 19t September 2015, to a total of
382 clients. This equates to a 98.7% satisfaction rate.

COMPLAINTS

No complaints have been received for the quarter for Care at Home services
delivered by any of these providers.

Health and Social Care Integration.

The initial round of management appointments has now been concluded. For
the Helensburgh and Lomond Area Jim Littlejohn has been appointed to the
Locality Manager post and Linda Skrastin has been appointed to the Local
Area Manager post.

There has also been one further change to the local Social Work Area
Management Team. In July we reported that Mitch Dow and David Hall had
been appointed to the vacant Team Leader positions, unfortunately David
has now resigned and he left on Friday 6. We have processed the vacancy
to recruit on a permanent basis and until such time as that is achieved we will
be hoping to secure a temporary replacement with effect from 30t
November.

CONCLUSION

It is clear from the information gathered from service users, their families and
carers that in general the care at home is being consistently provided in an
appropriate manner and at a level that continues to maintain people living
healthily and safely in their own homes. A more robust in-reach service to the
Vale of Leven and the other Glasgow Hospitals that provide for the local
population has also been developed and although it's very early days we can
see that this joint initiative with local Health colleagues is already proving to
be a success in managing peoples care as they return home and reducing
the bed days that are lost as inpatients. Ongoing evaluation and monitoring



Page 126

of this and the mainstream care at home services will continue to ensure
good practice, customer satisfaction and will maintain standards.

Concern still remains with regards to shortages of staff, resulting in providers
being unable to take on packages at short notice. The proposals described
above,(IRISS and Hospital in-reach service) will work towards assisting
providers to actively look at innovative ways of attracting staff, and help with
right-sizing and continuity of care planning for those who require periods of
in-patient care.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Policy Consistent with Best Value and National Policy on
Re-shaping Older People’s Services

6.2 Financial None

6.3 Legal None

6.4 HR None

6.5 Equalities None

6.6 Risk None

6.7 Customer Service None

Cleland Sneddon

Executive Director of Community Services

Policy Lead, Councillor Mary Jean Devon

16t November 2015

For further information contact: James Littlejohn, Service Manager (Operations)
Adult Care.



Page 127 Agenda ltem 12

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Helensburgh & Lomond Area Committee

DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 8 December 2015

HELENSBURGH CHORD PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENTS — POSITION PAPER

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Final Account for the Helensburgh CHORD public realm improvement works undertaken
by Maclay Civil Engineering has been agreed. The amount of the Final Account is
£5,034,282.88.

The total anticipated project cost is £6,582,639.12. The total available budget is
£7,235,758.12, the projected balance of funds remaining is therefore £653,119.

The Practical Completion Certificate for the last phase was issued on 30 April 2015. The
Defects Liability will cease on the 30 April 2016.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Helensburgh and Lomond members note the contents of the
paper.



Page 128

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL Helensburgh & Lomond Area Committee

DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 8 December 2015

HELENSBURGH CHORD PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENTS -POSITION PAPER

2.0

3.0

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

INTRODUCTION

The Final Account for the Helensburgh CHORD public realm improvement works undertaken
by Maclay Civil Engineering has been agreed. This report provides members with a
breakdown of all costs associated with the delivery of the project along with the amount of
funds left in the CHORD budget.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Helensburgh and Lomond members note the contents of the
paper.

DETAIL

Background

The Helensburgh Town Centre Public Realm Improvement works include road narrowing and
widening of adjoining pavements in natural materials; resurfacing of the carriageway;
installation of new street furniture; soft landscape works; enhanced lighting; creation of a
gathering/event space in Colquhoun Square; upgrading the West Bay Esplanade; introducing
public art to reflect the heritage and culture of the town; refurbishing the Public Conveniences
on the esplanade and upgrading Sinclair St car park. The aim is to enhance both the local
and wider communities’ perceptions of the town as a good place to live, work and play and to
raise Helensburgh'’s reputation as an attractive day visitor destination.

Works to all phases are now complete with the Practical Completion Certificate being issued
on the 30 April 2015. The Defects Liability period will cease on the 30 April 2016.

The outstanding snagging/defect matters, at time of writing the paper, are:

Fixing the memorial plaques to benches;

Checking lighting and wifi installation and undertaking any required remedial works;
Modification to entrance to Hood’s pend on West Princes St;

Repainting of white lining text at disabled bays on West Clyde St;

Modify white lining at Sinclair St at the junction with A814 West Clyde Street and
East Clyde street and insert white lining at Maitland St junction at East Princes St as
highlighted in Road Safety report; and

e Aeration of landscaping/grass areas in Colquhoun Square.

The Outdoor Museum and associated artworks are now complete and all are installed apart
from the Comet artwork as the location of this artwork has only recently been agreed by the
design team in conjunction with the Artwork selection panel.

To date Road’s officers have reported that there have only been a few very small re-
instatement carried out using the overage materials, so far they have provided 8 blocks to
public utilitie contractos, value circa £320.

The Final Account for the Helensburgh CHORD public realm improvement works undertaken
by Maclay Civil Engineering has been agreed. The amount of the Final Account is



4.7

4.7.1

4.7.2

4.8

5.0

Page 129

£5,034,282.88. The total anticipated project cost is £6,582,639.12. The total available budget
is £7,235,758.12, the projected balance of funds remaining is therefore £653,119. The
attached Appendix A — Helensburgh CHORD Final Account provides a breakdown of
expenditure against available budget, which has been reviewed and signed off by the
Council’s Financial Manager.

The Helensburgh CHORD budget allocation of £6.66m, approved by Council in December
2009 was awarded to deliver the aims and objectives outlined below.

Helensburgh - Town Centre - To develop a more sustainable traffic management scheme in
the town centre by reducing traffic through the main streets in the town centre, thus enhancing
pedestrian movement, creating events space and a street-café culture.

Helensburgh — West Bay — to redevelop the West Bay Esplanade between Colquhoun
Square and William Street, linking it to the town centre. To create an environment suitable for
leisure strolling with much better access to the local shops, restaurants and cafes and bars on
West Clyde Street.

The project has delivered the above objectives and there a clear indications that the above
council investment is beginning to stimulate economic investment within the town.

Given the project is complete, the only remaining risk is the satisfactory completion of the
snagging/defect items. Given the scale and nature of these items the risk is deemed to be
low. To mitigate against the contractor not satisfactorily addressing these risks an element of
funds are being retained by the Council along with the retention budget which is approximately
2% of the contract value paid out at the end of the defects liability period, i.e. 30 April 2016.

CONCLUSION

The project has received positive feedback from local residents, businesses and from visitors
to Helensburgh. The cost of delivering the Helensburgh CHORD Public Realm has come in
under budget. A Post Project Review will be undertaking in 2016 to measure the economic,
social and environmental benefits that have been achieved from the delivery of the project.

IMPLICATIONS

POLICY The delivery of this project fits with the Council’s Corporate Plan, Single
Outcome Agreement and approved Development Plan key actions and
policy for safeguarding our built heritage and town centre regeneration. The
economic outcomes from this project will contribute to the Council’s
Economic Development Action Plan at a strategic and area based level.

FINANCIAL Covered in Highlight Report

LEGAL Any issues will be dealt with through the Contract.

HR Personnel commitment across relevant departments for duration of project

EQUALITIES No equal opportunities implications

RISKS As outlined in 4.8 above.

Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure Services: Pippa Milne

Policy Lead: Ellen Morton

For further information contact: Helen Ford, Capital Regeneration Programme Manager, Tel:

07879641415

24 November 2015




Page 130

Helensburgh Final Account Financial Breakdown APPENDIX A

Total Budget
Available

£7,235,758.12

( £6.66m CHORD; SPT
£348,499.90; S75
£220K;and £7,258.22

Morrison’s Utilities credit)

Total Project Cost

£6,582,639.12

Surplus £653,119
Breakdown of spend:
Enabling works £205,705.4

contract

Main Works Contract

Artworks

Professional Fees,
legal costs, site
supervision; statutory
fees, site
investigations,
consultations, Stage 3
Road safety audit)

Contribution to
Chamber of
Commerce summer
festival 2014

Helensburgh TIC

Contribution to
Council Roads loss of
car parking fees)

Skatepark contribution

Brown signage — Bear
Scotland

Contribution to
Chamber of
Commerce summer
festival 2015

Submissions and
Awards

£5,034,282.88

£147,570

£1,041,727.84

£17,925

£5,000

£55,000
£5,500

£11,000

£5,000

£605

Includes purchase of granite £70k
agreed by members at Special AC

10 March 15.




Page 131

Machine sweeper

Economic Evaluation
Allowance

Additional works

Total

£13,323

£20,000

£20,000

£6,582,639.12

Based in Helensburgh

allowance

allowance




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133 Agenda Item 13

NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 139
NOT FOR PUBLICATION by virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9
of Schedule 7A of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3a Minutes of previous Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee meeting held on 13 October 2015.
	Minutes

	3b Minutes of special Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee meeting held on 23 November 2015.
	Minutes

	5 Adult Protection Committee Annual Report
	6 Helensburgh and Lomond Area Scorecard FQ2
	7a Helensburgh Highland Games
	Helensburgh and Lomond_Appendix_Highland Games_New

	7b Rosneath Highland Games
	Rosneath_Appendix

	8 Third Sector grants - Update on funds remaining
	9 Roads Revenue Budget - FQ2
	10 Care at Home - FQ2
	12 CHORD Progress Report
	13 Helensburgh Shopfront Enhancement Initiative Update
	Appendix 1 - Update 24_11_ 2015


